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2. ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY'S ACTIVITY |

L1 Analysis of the company s uctivity

a} Description of the company™s main acbvity

The Company COMCEREAL 84 TULCEA is a joint stock company, with private share
capital, which operates in the agriculture and food industry.

The main activity of the company 15 the conditioning, storage and selling of agricultural
products. With a total storage capacity of approximately 137,000 tons of cereals and a capacity
authorized by the Directorate for Agricalture and Rural Development Tuleea of 111,100 tons, the
company occupies ong of the top places in Tulcea district in this domain, having the capacity to
receive up to 23 of the agricultural production of the district.

b} Specification of the incorporation date of the company
The company Comceréal was established by the Government Decision 1054/1995, upon the
reorganization of the former Romcereral — Autonomous Administration of Tulcen and its
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transformation o two economic agents, namely the Company Comeereal S.A. Tulcen and the
Mational Agency for Agriculiural Products — Autonomous Administration Tuleea,

) Description of any significant merger or reorganization of the company, of the subsidiaries
or of the controlled companics, during the financial vear
= Wotl applicable.

d) Description of assets acquisitions and/or sales

Considening the endowment of the company with quite archaic machinery and equipment,
through the investment policy of the company started years ago and continued both in 2019 and in
2020 and will also continue in the following vears, it was essentially aimed to increase product
quality control, the control of the quantity of products, the extension of the storage spaces, the
increase of the transfer rate of the products both at the scquisition and at the delivery and last but not
least the modemization of the IT software equipment base as well as the hardware. In 2019,
investments amounting to 211,029 ron were made, while in 2020, the velue of investments was
263,952 ron.

Regarding the salez’outtlows of fixed assets, in 2019 were fully disposed of fully depreciated
fixed assets, with an inventory value of 56,370 ron, these having a degree of wear that no longer
allowed their use, and following the mventory carried out on 31.12. 2019, it was proposed 1o scrap in
2020 fixed assets fully depreciated and with an advanced degree of wear, having an inventory value
of 30,902 lei and were also capitalized by selling two dump trucks that were no longer used by
Comeereal in the operating activity, amounting to 320,249 lei. Therefore, the total value of fxed
assets outflows in 2020 was in the amount of 251,151 ron,

¢} Deseription of the main results of the company™s activity evaluation

The CAEN {T.N.: Actvities Oassification In the Mational Economy) code based on which the
annual reports were made is 3210 “Storage™,
The main object of our company 15 the storage and preservation of the cereals.
The technological process for the conservation of cereals includes the following stages:
- the quantitative reception (weighing) and qualitative reception (laboralory analysis of the samples
taken from the means of transport). The net quantity, moisture content, hectolitre weight and cereals®
forcign bodies content from that means of transport are determined. There is also simed at checking
the presence or absence of pests and disease attacks;
- cerenls cleaning/selection, the stage in which the foreign bodies. dust and weed zeeds are removed;
- vertical transpori (with elevators) and horzontal transport (with convevor belis or with drag
conveyor belts) for storage in cells or warchouses;
- if the humidity does not allow the storage (being 1o high), the cereals are subjectad 1o the antificial
drying process (m drying colummns-dryers), by successive passes, for the extraction of the excess
water. When the humidity reaches the values recommended by the standords, the cereals are stored
for preservation:
- the storage for the preservation and monitoring of cereal parameters (humidity, tlemperature and the
presence of infections or not). Maintaining the parameters within the limits recommended by norms
and standards is done by measuring the temperature in the product mass, periodically, eliminating
excess heat by forced aeration (ventilation), observing the presence of pests and applying
phytosanitary treatments {disinsection, disinfection. rodent control);
- the delivery of cereals is done by weighing, laboratory analyses of the delivered cercals and
preparation of necessary documéntation.
In the last 3 years, the share of the revenues generated from the basic activity in the total furnover is
presented below:
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Name 0E [ [ a0m
Tumover 100% Turnover 100%; Turnmn' H’M
Fevenues from services :
ren-:l::rE:!d Sl - .45 1a7 .44
= Bevenues from zale of
goods and finished 08.18 97.46 UR.66
producis % B o
- Other revenues tfmm the 0.37 (.57 0,90
tumover %

The evolution of the quentities received during the last 3 years 15 presented in the table below;

~lomis-
RECEIVED FREODUCT /! YEAR 2018 2019 2020 |
TOTAL - Tons 08,056 SR, 185 33533 |

The uncertainty induced by the state of emergency and the state of alert imposed due to the
COVID 19 pandemic, the reaction of consumers to the evolution of theé coronavirus epidemic, the
arrears of subsidies, swine fever that closed the farms. delayed VAT refund, deficient insurance of
the need tor inputs for the agricultural campaigns, the valnerability of farmers to increasmgly
frequent extreme weather events, registenng increasing damage and harder to overcome from one
wvear to another and last but not least the lack of a functional mechanism of insurance of the
agricultural crops against severe and prolonged drought is the framework in which Comeereal SA
Tulcen carried oul its setivity, in the complicated vear 2020,

The drought conditions in the vear in question overlapped with the major water deficit in the
soil installed since the 2019 campaign end plagued the production of cereals and o1l plants,
especially in Dobrogea but also in neighbouring areas such as Baragan and southern Moldova where
Comgcereal SA carries out its sctivity, generating much lower productions compared to 2018-2019.
Due to the very low productions, the services of storage and conditioning of agricultural products did
not find the ohject for which they were forecasted and the budgeted quantities to be purchased were
impossible 1o achieve.

.11, General evaluation clements
Compared to the indicators proposed for the yvear 2020, the company achieved the following:

_mh_
Na, EXFLANATION Made in Madein | Made in
| 2018 19 2020
1. | Net profitfloss in the linancial year | 4971 319 | 218681 205 983
2, | Tumover, _9_11_?,:[111;]; __________ B 114041 060 | TEO45211 | 53 152 525
Dreliveries in the exterior ] | DBE 1RT 4 GBI 200 [ 3 424 505
3, | Cost of sold goods and rendered services 110202921 | 75 566 720 | 52 220 521 |
4. | Liquidity {cash and accounts in banks) 4 662 553 2369027 33539823

a) Profit
The company COMCEREAL SA TULCEA recorded in yvear 2020 a pross accounting profit
of 443 174 ron, out of which 1,147.931 ron profit from exploitation and 704,757 ron profit from the
financial activity. As a result of the taxation, a net profit of 203 983 ron resulted.

by Turnover
In 2020 the company recorded a tumover of 53,152.525 ron, The tumover realized in 2020
represents approximately 40% of the budget provisions for 2020:
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Mame 2018

2019

2020

Made Expected

Expected

Made

Expected

Tumowver 114,041,060

91365900 @ 78945211

146,282,944 53,152,515

133,538,604

¢} External deliveries

Im 2020, Comcereal made intra-commumity sales of goods in total amount of 3,424,505 ron.

d} Costs

The tote]l expenditures ncumred m 2020 in the amount of 54.308.103 ron represent
approximately 41% of the total expenses provided in the BVC (T.N.: Budget of Reverues and Expenses)

2020,
-mn-
EXPLANATION Maile Made Made 2020
2018 2019

Total expenditure, of which: (115,171,691 | 72,222,636 | 54,808,103
Exploitation expenses, of which: [H,JlB.,l 75| 71260467 54096175
Expenses with rew materials 15,357,810 2499797 | 4329815
Expenses with matenals, energy, consumed 552,715 336,066 501,813
materials
Expenses with goods 89,232,204 | 61,528,013 | 41,241,732 |
Expenses with the statf 1!' 331,BES ___2_}_4_1@_2_& _ 1 37414
Expenscs with the amortization R30,.236 TO0,008 797,244
Expenses with taxes 307257 203 364 300,030
Other expenditurs 55150017 | 20961,778 | 4,051,745
| Expenses with provisions | BG oa 1 304413 S000,382
Financial expenses E53.516 D62, 169 T11,928 |

The eéxpenditure on materials and energy recorded a slight decrease compared to the year
2019, because of the decrease of the quantities of traded goods.

The expenses on the steffl are relatively constant compared 1o those v 2009, A shight inerease
was produced due to the rize in the wages impozed by the law,

As far as goods expenses are concemed, they are lower than in 2019 by about 33%.. This was
possible as 8 result of:

- cereal and oil planiz productions greatly diminished compared 1o the campaigns of 2019;

- the purchase of a smaller quantity of cereals compared to the year 2019, by about 42%;

- the fierce competition on the cereals transactions in the aved;

With regard to “Other Expenses”, this indicator includes: repair costs, insurances, paid rent,
collaborators expenses, transponation costs, IT services, telephony, internet, legal services,
laboratory analyses, prading fees, seeds processing services for sowing, sunflower processing
services, land processing services, etc. Their volume increased compared to the previous vear, by
approximately 37%. Against the background of wading a smaller quantity of cereals, the company
had to find new opportunities, these materialized in the processing of a quantity of approximately
2500 tons of sunflower. the resulting finished products providing an increased added value and also
subleased an arca of approximately 322 ha of agncultural land for 8 period of 3 years on which crops
will be established in the 2020-2021, 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 campaigns,



e} Market pereentage held
The crops set up in the agricultural basins adjacent to the subdivisions of Comcereal SA
Tulced represent a percentage of about 25% of the crops of cereals and pilseeds sown in the district,
The received amount of product is influenced by the company’s desire to buy each product,
by the price, the cash availability and the competition on the market during that period.

i Liguidity -[0-
Current liguidity indicator 2018 2009 2o
Current assets (A) 40,816,587 | 30685315 | 31228015
Current debts (B} 26,590,588 | 16,020,080 | 16 862 009
I ASB- in number of times 1.53 1.92 1.85
Liguidity Immediate liguidity indicator 2018 2019 2020
indicators | Current assets {A) 40,816,587 | 30685315 31228015
Stocks (B) 22,525.269 | 15,169,452 | 19,472,919
Current debts (C) 26,506 588 | 16,020,080 | 16,862,000
H-ﬂjﬂ"}‘f — in number of times N w7 .70

The pructice suggests that the current liquidity is appropriate for most businesses when it
would ensure that all current debis are covered by current assets at least once,

The security value of the fast liguidity indicator is between 0.6 and 1. In our case, a value of
0.70 expresses the ability of an enterpnise to meet its short-term debt from receivables, cash and
short-term financial investment, excluding the stocks, which have the slowest potential for liguidity
conversion, the account available shown above provides a comfort in this respect,

[.1.2, Asszessment of the technical level of the company

a) sales markets for each product, service and the distribution methods;

The trade activity for agncultural products, as well as of the finished products obtained
pursuant to oleaginous processing was carried out in 2019 and in 2020 respectively both on the
domestic market as well as on the foreign market by the intra-community transactions made by
Comeereal. The purchased products are sold both to the cereals traders and to the commercial agents
from the agncultural products processing industey (beer, oil, bakery products).

The services provision activity is mainly addressed 1o the domestic producers whoe do not have
storage facilities or have, but they ar¢ not properly equipped to preserve the products in pood
condition {so as to reach the quality required to obtain an attractive price).

b} the share of the commercial activity and services provision in the total turnover for the
last 3 vears.

In the last vears, a change i the revenue structure of the umover has been attempted, so as to
achieve a balance of the revenues from services (decreasing) towards the revenoes from the
marketing of the agriculiural products, the trade revenues reaching 98.66% of the total revenues.

The evolution of these indicators is presented below:



=I'CIf=

2018 2019 2020
Mame Value Pereentage Valone Percemtage Value Percentag
of tooal ol todal e ol todal
I Feveniies FEVenes Fevendes
Total revenues, of | 117,020 201 100 | 78,833,574 100.00 | 55,250,277 100.00
which: I I
a) The tumover, of 4,041,060 | 9745 | 78945211 100,14 | 23,152,525 96,20
which: } I , '
Revenues from services 1,647,883 141 1,557,538 197 | 236490 | .44
provision 4
Revenues from the sale 111,967,171 95.68 | 76941811 9746 | 52440.521 95 66
of finished poods and
products —:
Other revenues from the 426,007 0.36 445,862 0.57 475514 (]
mover B
b} Other revenues 2,088,141 2.55 | 111637 0.14 | 2008752 380

¢} the new products taken into account for which a substantial volume of assets will be
given in the next financial vear and the stage of development of these products.

[a 2020, a gquantity of 938 tons of sprat, 965 tons of degummed oil, the shell from the
processing of sunflower seeds 398 tons, fatty acids 15 tons was sold and in addition to the
agricultural goods, Comcereal SA also sold chemical fertilizers, seeds for sowing and herbicides for
agriculire. It 15 hoped that this kind of trade will be developed also in the coming years, at a
significant level compared to the previous years.

1.1.3, Assessment of the technical-material supply activity (indigenous sources, import
SOUrces).

The technical-material basis is generally provided from the domestic market and consists
mainly of materials, spare parts and components for the technical facilities afferent to the reception
bases and to Baia Silo.

1.1.4.  Assessment of the sale activity

a) Description of the sequential evolution of the sales on the domestic and/or foreign market
and of the sales prospects on medivm and long term;

The sitation of the sales of agriculiural products on the intermal and foreign market duning the vear

202(), compared 1o 2019 is presented below:
DELIVERED 2018 2019 20240
AGRICULTURAL
PRODUCTS Quantity | Valwe |Quantity| WValue |Quantity| Value
(wheat, corn, sunflower, -tons- ~FOI- ~lons- -ron- -Lons- -romn-
rapeseed, barley, efc)
TOTAL DELIVERED

PRODUCTS 87,287 (106,703,117 58928 | 60.462.592 | 33920 |44.997.665




For 2021 there are assumptions for inereasing the guantities of received and purchased
agricultural products, which would allow alse the substantial increase in the volume of the
agricultural products delivered on the intemal and foreign market, there being implicitly an increase
in the utilization degree of the available storage capacities. Everything depends on the evolution of
cereals prices in the world market.

b) The description of the competitive situation In the company’s fleld of activity, the market
share of the products or services of the company and of the main competitors.

I the recent years, the number of competing companies that purchase grain in Tuleea disirct
has increased considerably. Representutive exporters such as Ameropa Grains SA, Cargill
Apricultura SRL, Brise Group, Agricover SA, LTA Mondial SRL, Prutul SA Galagi, Comfent, etc.,
compete with Comeereal in the acquisition phase, hiring goods from producers before the stan of its
harvest, either by concluding contracts for the sale of inputs (seeds, chemical fertilizers, pesticides,
insecticides, etc.) with payment for the future harvest (the prices bemg established at the time of
cereals sale) or by concluding future contracts with slready esteblished prices or by granting
hinancing for future goods with pavment in products at the next harvest.

In order to survive the new coordinates, Comcereal alipned itsell with these markel
conditions, offering formers in the arcas around the reception bases similar conditions, respectively,
granting cash advances and selling seeds. herbicides, fertilizers, insecticides with payment in
products at the future harvest, ensuring also a commodity fund for the upcoming campaign.

The company Comeeréal SA Tulcea has the capacity to adapt to the new market conditions,
having qualified personnel, with experience in the field, an appropriate infastructure and & flexible
pricing policy, adapted 1o the market reguirements at a given moment.

Thus, in 2020, new commercial contacts were established with the major operators on the
cereals market, in order to capitalize on the purchased products: Cofeo International Romama SRL,
Argus SA Constanta, Glencore Agniculture Romania, Ameropa Grains SA, Cargill Agricultura SRL,
el

c) The description of any significant dependence of the company towards a single customer or
to a group of clients of which loss would have a negative impact on the company’s revennes.

The company is directly dependent on the agricubural produecers, on their vitality, on their
ability to produce goods to condition, store, sell on an organized market, so s 1o make a profit which
would be retntroduced in the economical-financial circuit,

On the other hand, the company sells its products to a diverse clientele. Comeereal 15 not
dependent on a single client or on a growp of clients, the management’s policy being o ensure the
profitability of the performed activity, based on the market criteria,

1.1.5. Assessment of the aspects regarding the employees/staff of the company.

a) Specifying the namber and level of training of the employees of the Issuer, as well as
the degree of onionization of the workforce.

The company carries out the sforementioned ectivitics with a staff of 49 employees, of which
17 techmical, economic and adminigtrative staft {1 general manager with mandate contract, 2
directors with individual employment contract, 5 TESA {(T.N.; Technical, Economic and Socio-
Administrative) persons at the headquaners, 6 heads of subunits who are also managers, | accountant
at the subunits. 2 auxiliary staft at headguarters - secretoryvicashier). OF the 30 workers, 20 are skilled
in the professions specific to our activities, and 10 are ungualified.

Of the 49 employees, 9 are graduates of higher education, |4 with secondary edecation and
16 professionally qualified and 10 are ungualified emplovees.

7



The worktorce i1s not registered in any union, the emplovees have no affiliations to any union
block.

b) Description of the relationships between the manager and the employees, as well as
any other conflicting elements which characterize these relationships

The employees” relationships with the managers are normal, without stress, based on mutual
respect.

Taking inte account the diversification and development plans of the company’s operations,
it is intended to employ qualified and specialized personnel to cany out these activities within the
limit of the available resources.

1.1.6. Assessing the issnes related to the impact of the issuer’s basic activity on the
enviromment.

As a result of the technological conditioning process (removal of foreign bodies, vegetable
and mineral powders by suction from the product mass) it results:

- non=valuable technological wastes, which are transported by own means to the waste dumps from
the locahities where the reception bases operate

- valuable technological wastes that are capitalized by resale or restitution 1o the agricultural
producers.

At the reception bases belongmg to our company, no sources of soil and subsoil pollution
have been identitied, there are no sources of radiation, the noise and vibrations levels are within the
permissible limits.

There 15 a contract for taking over waste and housshold waste for all reception bases in the
destrict with the sanitation company JT Grup SRL and for the municipality of Tulcea with the
company Servicll Publice Tulcea.

The company has no litigation regarding to the breach the legislation on the environment
protection.

In the cowrse of the sctivity of storage and preservation of agricultural products there have
been no events that would have had any impact on the environment. At the same time, thers wers no
violations of the legal provisions regarding the environment, health, safety at work, DSVSA (TN.:
Sanitary-Vieterinary and Food Safety Directorate), safety al work, fires prevention and extingunishing,

We mention that the company holds all the operating permits and authonizations required by
the legislation in force,

During the year 2020, the inspections carmied out by the specialized control bodies did not
reveal any deviations or violations of the legal provisiong,

1.1.7. Assessment of the development & research activity
The company does not have a distinct depariment for the research and development
activities, but it has particular concerns in the field of the market rezsearch, as well as the evolution
of the cereals storage and handling technologies.

L1.5. Evaluating the company’s activity on the risk management

Due to the nature of the activities it performs, the Company is exposed o various nsks
mcluding: the credit nsk, foreign exchange nsk. inlerest rate nsk and liquidity nsk. The management
aims to reduce the potential adverse effects associated with these risk ficlors on the Company's
financial performance.



L. The credit risk

The Company is subject to credit risk due to its commercial receivables and to other types of
recervables. The references on the chients’ creditworthiness are normally obtained for all new
customers, the receivables due date is carefully monitored. and the amounts due after the deadline
are promptly tracked.

. Foreign exchange risk

The company may be exposed 10 the exchange rate fluctuations through the debt generated by
any foreign currency loans or commercial debis. Due o the high associated costs, the Company’s
policy is not 1 use financial instruments to mitigate this risk.

i The interest rate risk
The Company's cash flows are alfected by the rate fluctustions of the interests,

4. The liguidity risk
The prudent management of the liquidity risk involves maintaining sufficient cash and
available credit lives.

L 1.9, Prospective clements regarding the activity of the company

a) Presenting and analvsing the trends, elements, events or uncertainty factors that affect or
could affect the liquidity of the company compared to the same period of the previous vear.

In the activity that the company carries out, the advancement of inputs allows to contract
gonds in advance, which is an advantage,

However, the granting of these inputs presents a nisk of exposure in respect of the recovery of
the amounts paid in advance. In the vear 2020, the company provided inputs, by the coentracts
concluded increasing the conditions for guaranieeing these ndvances.

The financing to the producers i3 made with the establishment of pledge on the established
crops, pledge on movable goods, pledge on real estate, pledge on the current account from the bank,
guarantes peyment instrument as well as the universality of the present and future receivables of the
financed producer. These guarantees are registerad in the electronic archive.

b} Presentation and analysis of the effects of current or anticipated capital expenditures, on the
financial situation of the company compared to the snme period of the previous year.

In 2020 investments were made in the amount of 263,952 ron, which reached the target for
which they were provided.

¢) Presentation and analysis of the events, transactions and economic changes that significantly
affect the revenues from the main business.

One of the most severe drouglits in the last 50 years has severely affected large areas of land,
with a significant mmpact on vegetable crop production, a phenomenon recognized also by the
Romanian authorities in the field, and the forecasts of the US Department of Agriculture (USDA)
gnd those of the Euwopean Commission on the grain production and exporls have become
increasingly pessimistic, especially for the Black Sea arca,

Many of the ¢crops sown in the fall of 2019 and in the spring of 2020 were destroyed, with
damage recorded on abount 2.4 milhon hectares out of & total of slmost 6 million hectares which wers
gowt, The most affected areas were the whole of Dobrogea, southern Moldova and Baragan, where
Comeereal 8A Tuleea also carmies out s activity of purchasing cereals and oilseeds. Romanian
farmers, very vulnereble to extreme weather phenomena, recorded serious damage in the agriculral
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year 2009 — 2020, very difficult and even impossible 1o bear in some places. Farmers and traders are
two categories that work together on the grain market and the unprecedented simation they had 1o go
through has led to vielations of the basic economic principles, very dangerous for the entire trade
chain, causing destabilization of the contractual discipline, which was already so fragile. built in
decades and which was the basis for the development of Romansn sgriculture. The impact on the
company's economy of this phenomenon is major and difficult to quantify.

A faet that significantly affects the revenues from services provision in the last years is the
increased competition related to the storage services, due to the fact that the agricultural producers,
benefiting from the offered economic facilities, have purchasged their own storage facilities.

The coronavirus pandemic 18 rewriting how the activity is carmied out in all areas, globally,
but agriculture is an cssential arca that necds to be protected because it provides the much-needed
food for everyone and can prevent a food crisis.

e

2. TANGIBLE ASSETS OF THE COMPANY

2.1. Specifying the characteristics of the main production capacities owned by the company.
The Company COMCEREAL S.A. TULCEA has 7 active and authorized work points and
two mobile bases, These are spread all over the distriet so as to cover an area as large as possible to
collect and receive the cereals in quantities as large as possible. The work points belonging o the
Company COMCEREAL 5 _A. can be presented as follows:
- Baia Silo — Baia village, Tulcea district, 63 km. distance from Tulcea, on the European Road 87,
Tulcea — Constanta), with two grain silos (type Froment Clavier — PIF 1946, 5000 tons, with annex —
FIF 1968, 5500 tons and tvpe LP.5.C.A LA, — PIF 19735, 44000 tons), The silo benefits from an inner
railway, with a length of approx. 1,400 m., with two lines, connected to the Baia station at the
Tuloes-Medgidia milroad line. Also included in the work point’s endowment there are sheds,
concrete platforms, imterior roads, an electrical energy transformation and supply network, water
supply network and hydrants network. In the premises there is a mechanical workshop where works
of tuming, welding. locksmithing, painting. etc. can be done, a cereals analvsis laboratory with
modem equipment: remote sampling probe, humidity, temperature, weight hectolitre efectronic
amalyser, mechanical foreign matter analyser, etc.).

The other working poinis are ceneals reception centres, with honzontal storage spaces (grain
storehouses), equipped with laboratories, weighing svstems, mechanized cereals taring/selection and
transportation systems (hormzontally and vertically), storage arcas, concrete platforms, premises
interior roads and electneity and water supply networks.

As pecubianties, the cereala reception bases are presented as follows:
The Mahmudia reception base is located in the east of the district. on the District Road 222C,
ghout 35 km from Tulcea and about 1 km from the Danuhe;

- The [saccea reception bhase, located halfway between Tulcea and Galati ferry crossing
(National Road 22, 37 km from Tulcea), situated on the Danube bank, with a platform
{clevation guota + 5.5m) and an amanged pier, with the possibility of ships operation, with
draught up to 3.5 m;

- The Macin reception base, located in the westemn part of the district, is about 20 km from
Tulcea, and about 20 km from the Braila ferry crossing poing;

- The Peceneaga reception base, located at about 300 m from the Danube bank, on the Distnct
Road 222 F, about 80 km from Tulcea;

- Casimeen reception base, located in the southern part of the distrier, on the Disinet Road 323
E, about 85 km from Tuces;
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- Mihai Kogalniceanu reception base, located on Tulcea — Constanta road, E B7, about 30 km
from Tulcea. in the vicinity of the station of the Romanian Railway Company. 15 endowed
with a railroad of about 900 m, but 15 not conneeted to the main fine as it 15 in conservation.

- Topolog Mobile Base — Topolog village, Tulcea district

- Horia Mobile Base — Horia villape

- Issccea Bakery — Iseccea town, Vidin Strect, no, 32, Tulcea district

The management of the company ensures the maintenance and repair of the tangible assets in
order o keep the operating parameters within normal limits.

2.2 Deseription and analysis of the degree of wear and tear of the company’s properties
The properties of the company are in a state of functioning and fully operational.
The last assessment of the lands, buildings and specinl constructions belonging o the
company was made on 31.12.2020, the values set for each asset, taking into account the degree of
their wear,

2.3 Indication of the potential problems related to the ownership of the tangible assets of the
issuing company
Our company owns £0.66 hectares of land, and for the subunits where we do not have land ownership
(Macin, Peceneaga), it 15 leased from the Local Councils,
There are no problems related to the ownership of the company’s tangible assets

3. MARKET OF THE SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE COMPANY

e — o — = |

3.1. Specification of the markets from Romania and from other countries where the
securities issued by the company are negotiated

The Romanian market on which the securities issued by the company are negotiated is the
Bucharest Stock Exchange through the alternative rading system AeRO. The symbel of company
15 CTUL.

A2, Description of the company’s dividends policy. Specification of the dividends
due/paid/accumulated in the last 3 vears and, if applicable, of the reasons for the possible
diminishing of the dividends over the last 3 years

In 2018, Comcercal SA achieved a net profit of 1,491.319.30 ron and was distributed as
follows: constitution of legal reserves in the amount of 7,414.50 ron, and the difference in the
amount of 148390480 divided as follows: 17548040 ron fo be used to make reserves al the
disposal of the company, and the amount of 1.308.424.40 ron w0 be let for the distnbution of
dividends, namely 0.40 ron pross dividend 7 share,

In 2019, Comcereal SA achieved a net accounting profit of 121868325 wn and was
distributed as follows: 205.109.42 ron to be used for setting up reserves at the company’s disposal,
and the amount of 1,013,5373.83 ron was distnbuted for the distribution of dividends, respectively
(L31 ron, pross dividend / share,

In 2020, Comeerzal SA achieved a net accounting profit in the amount of 205 983.15 ron and
the sole administrator of the company proposes the distribution of the entire amount for the
establishment of reserves at the company™s disposal.

3.3, Description of any activities of the company to purchase its own shares

Mot applicable

11



3.4, The number and the nominal value of the shares issued by the mother company owned by

the subsidiaries

Mot applicable

3.5. The manner in which the company ensures its financial obligations towards the
bondholders and/or other debt securities

Mot gpplicable, the company has no issued bonds.

| 4. THE MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

4.1, The administrators of the company:

In the year 2020, the management of the company was provided by Mr. Toan Pauna, as the Sole
Administrator, appointed on the basiz of the Shareholders’ General Ordinary Meeting Decision no.

320.12.201°7.

There are no agreements, understandings or family relationships of the administrator with any

other person in the firm.

The administrator of the company does not own shares in the share capital of the company.
The administrator’s term of office is valid uatil 23.01.2022.
Durng 2020, 25 meetings of the Board of Directors were convened and held.

4.1.The executive management of the company

For the peried 01.01.2020 - 31.12.2020, the executive management of the company was

_ provided by:
M. Last and fMrst
T

~ The function held in
the company

I. Miculescu Emilian

General manager

Mandate Contract (CM)/
Individual Employment
Contract (CIM)

“Mandate Comiract
INREMOE.11.2013 and
additional acts

Dualilication

engineear

)

Monea Aurorn

Economic manager

Individual Labour Contract
266/28.08.2015

3. Cermnat Comeliu

Technical manager

Individual Labour Contract
200006 09 018

BCONDIMSE

engineer

No member of the executive management of the company has any agreement, understanding,
or family relationship with any other person in the company.
The technical director of the company in the person of Mr. Cernat Comelin owns 83 shares in
the share capital of Comeereal SA Tulcea.

4.3. Litigations or administrative procecdings in which the company’s administrators or
miembers of the execative management have been involved in the past 5 years in relation to
their activity within the issuing company, as well as those concerning the capacity of those
persons to perform their duties within the issuing company

Mot applicable

)




| 5. THE FINANCIAL-ACCOUNTING SITUATION

The linancial statements for the financial year 202, prepared and presented by the unit management,
are audited by the external financial auditor IPA & Consultanta SRL Bucuresti.

a} Balance sheet items

.11'_1“_-.
Patrimonial elements 3122018 31.12.2019 31.12.2020

A, Fixed assets - TOTAL 14,713,302 18,134,323 | 17,588,361
Of which |

Intangible assels 26,070 12,147 Ml

Tangible assets 17,652,745 | 7,087 689 16,553,333

Financial assets 1.034,487 1,034 487 1,034,487
B. Current assets — TOTAL 40,816,587 30,685,315 31,228,015
Of which '

Stoschks 22 525269 15,169,452 15,472,919

Receivables 13,628,765 13,146 836 5215213

Cash and bank accounts 4,662,553 2,369,027 3,539,422
C. Expenses in advance 1] 0| 0|
TOTAL ACTIVE (I+IHII+V}) 59,529, 889 45819638 | 48.816,376 ]
D. Debis o be paid m a penod of 26,596 588 16,020,080 | 16,862,004
up 10 ONe Year
E. Debis to be paid in a period of 54,449 0 ]
more than one vear I
F. Provisions 15,025 21,631 3,345
G. Uneamed incomes 303,286 283,583 204,568
H. Equity 32,540,541 324494 (44 31.686,434
Of which

Paid subscribed capital 8,177,653 B.177.653 8,177,653

Reserves from reassessment 16,280,773 16,280,773 18,280,773

Reserves 6508211 6,773,601 T.022.045
Reported result of previous loss 0 43,244 0
Profit distribution 7415 0 0

Result of the financial year 1,491,319 J 1,218,683 205,983
TOTAL PASSIVE (111111 50,519 880 48,819,638 48.816.376

From the analysis of the balance sheet items on 31.12.2020, we can zee that the net fixed

assets show chonpes compared to the year 2019 due to the investments made in 2020, of the
cumulative annual depreciation but also of the updating of the market value of the assets of land and
buildings nature on 31.12.2020 following their revaluation performed by an independent evaluator,
authorized by ANEVAR {TN: National Association of Authorized Evaluators in Romania).

Current assets are slightly increasing in 2020 compared o 2019 ag well as short-term debts.

In 2020, Comcereal 34 does not record long-term debts following the payment of the
instalments for long-term loans.

Equity shows an increasing evolution in 2020 compared 1o 2019 due to the increase of
reserves from the revaluation of fixed assets such as land and buildings on 31.12.2020.

At the end of 2020, the share capital of Comcercal 5A Tulcea is of 8,177.652,50 RON
divided into 3,271,061 shares with a nominal value of 2.3 RON.
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b} The profit and loss account

The company performances are presented in the profit and loss account.

~ron-
Criteria ' 218 1019 2020

| Tumover 114,041,060 | 78945211 | 53,152,528
Incomes ﬁ'nm_gxplaimti[:-u 116,671,445 | 73683 640 55244 106

 Expenses from exploitation 114,318,175 | 71,260,447 24,006,175

_Result from exploitation 2,353,270 2,423,173 1,147,931
Financial incomses 357,756 |49 9314 7171
Financial expenses 851,516 962 169 711,928
Financial result =405, 760 -B12.235 =704, 757
Total incomes 117,029,201 | 73,833,574 55,251,277
Total expenses 115.171,691 | 72,222,636 54,808,103
Gross result 1857.510 |  1.610.93% 443,174
Tax on profit 366,191 392,255 237,191
MNet result 1,491,319 1,218,683 205,983

SC COMCEREAL SA TULCEA obtained in 2020 an operating profit in the amount of
1147 931 ron, decreased compared to that obtained in 2019, registering an unfavourable difference
of approximately 47%, the reasons bemng detailed in point 1.1 lemer &) and 1.1.9 lerter ¢). The
financial result resalted in a loss of 704,757 ron, approximately 13% lower than the financial loss
obtained in 2019, This was generated by a lesser use of credit facilities available at the disposal of
the company but also the fact that in 2020 Comcereal no longer received dividends sccording to
holdings. Thus, the gross resull registered m 2020 15 in the amount of 443,174 ron and the net one
has a value of 205,983 ron.

¢} Situation of treasury cash flows
The cash flow statement for 2019 and 2020 is set out in the annexes to this repon.
Cash Flow 01,012020: 2,369,027 ron
Cash Flow 31.12.2020; 3,530,823 ron

In order to diversify the range of purchased products and to complete the performed activity,
the company needs also in 2020 a working capital with a maximum value of up to 40,000,000 roo.

For this reason, we submit for approval to the sharcholders the involvement of 2 loan of up to
a maximum of 40,000,000 ron and to guarantee it up to 100% of the total assets of the patrimony as
well a8 the morgage on the stocks and receivables of the company.

| 6. Participations held by the company

Following the decision no. 1/30.08.2006 of the Sharcholders’ Extracrdinary General Meeting
regarding the particspation of the Company Comeereal 5.4, Tulcea on the establishment of a limited
liability company, with the activity object of cultivating cereals {except rice). leguminous plants and
oleaginous seeds producing plants, there started the approaches for the establishment of the
Company CEREAL PREST 5.R.L, which were finalized in October 2006,

The Company Cereal Prest SRL has a share capital subscribed and fully paid op at the date of the
incorporation, amounting to 1,033,600 ron, divided into 103,360 shares, with a value of 10 ron each.

k4



The company Cereal Prest SRL registered at the end of 2020 a loss in value of 230,018 ron.

7. Tmportant events happened after closing the financial year J
Mot applicable,

' 8. The total revenues of the Board members and of the general manager
The remuneration received for the aetivity performed and for the degree of fulfilment of the

indicators and the performance criteria by the sole administrator and by the general manager of the
company was in the net amount of 145142 ron in 2019 and in the net amount of 148.008 ron in

20240,

|9, Financial instruments |
The company did not use such instruments to influence the valuation of assets, lishilitics, financial

position or performance of the company.

Sole Administrator, General Manager, Economic Manager
PAUNA TOAN MICULESCU EMILIAN MOMEA ALUROEA
MIHAL
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COMCERIBAL A1

Tuleen, Issecei Street, no, Th: PhoFax: 02400534061/ 534069 e-mail: comeereal_tuleea (@yahoo.com
Unique Registration Code: ROEIV2AH; Trade Register Registration mo, J 360651 96; LED Code:
ZF4900RIDNANIUY M0 Share Capital: §,177,652,50 ron

TRANSILVANIA BANK ACCOUNT: ROSEBETRLIATO 20ZE10399XX
RAIFFEISEN BANK ACCOUNT: RO4T RZBR 0000 G600 0035 2530
BRD TULCEA ACCOUNT: R{O13 BRDE 3705 Y014 7740 3700
UMICREDIT BANK ACCOUNT: RO26 BACX D000 (N5 2325 5000

The Sole Administrator's proposal
on the profit distribution

The sole administrator of COMCEREAL SA Tulcea, considering the profit
made in the financial year 2020 in the amount of 205 983,15 ron, proposes to the
General Meeting of Shareholders to approve its distribution as follows:

205 983,15 RON for setting up reserves at the disposal of the company;

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

loan Pauna



STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of article 30 of the Accounting law no, 82/199]

The annual finencial statements on 31/12/2020 were prepared for the:

Entity: COMCEREAL 5A TULCEA

District: 36-- TULCEA

Address: ISACCEI STREET, NO. 73, TULCEA

Number in the trade register: J36/165/1996

Oreenership type: 34 — JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Main activity (CAEN (T.N.: Activitles Classification in the Mational Economy) class name and
code): 5210 - STORAGE

Linique registration code: RO 8392201

LEI Code: 254900 1 D AN ITY 300

The undersigned [OAN PAUNA assumes the responsibifity for the preparation of

the annual financial statements on 317122020 and confirms that:

a) The accounting policies used to prepare the annual financial stalements are in
nceordanee with the applicable sccounting regulations.

b) The annual Onancal statements provide a true pcture of the financial
position, financial performance and of other information about the performed
activity.

¢) The legal persons carry on their activity in conditions of continuity.

Administrator:
AN PALUMA



COMCEREAL S4 TULCEZ

Tuleen, Isaccei Street, no. 73; Ph'Fax; 024053406 1524069, c-mail: comeereal_fuleen @ vaheo.com
Unigue Registration Code; ROSMEEIAL; Trade Register Registiration no, J 3671651 %h: LET Code:
ORI D IANIUY 30440; Share Capital: 8,177,652.50 ron

TRANSILY ANIA BANK ACCOUNT: ROSSBTRLOZTOI 202E 10399 K
HAIFFEISEN BANK ACCOUNT: RO4T RZBE 0000 D&00 0035 2530
BRD TULCEA ACCOUNT: ROI13 BRDE 3705 Vs 7740 1704
UNICREINT BANK ACCOUNT: ROZ6 BACK DR D 2325 3000

NO. T14/15.03.2021

STATEMENT

We. the undersigned: loan Pauna — Sole Administrator, Niculescu Emilian-
Mihat — General Manager and Monea Aurora - Economic Manager, declare that the
annual financial — accounting statements on 31.12.2020 was prepared in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards and provides a fair and conforming with
the reality image of the assets, liabilities, financial position, profit and loss account
of the company Comcereal S5.A., Tulcez, and that the Administrator’s Report
includes a correct analysis of the development and performance of the company, as
well as a deseription of the main risks and uncertainties specific to the activity

carried out by the company Comcereal SA Tulcea.

Sole Administrator
IOAN PAUNA

General Manager:
NICULESCU EMILIAN-MIHAI

Economic Manager;
MONEA AURORA



COMCEREAL 5A TULCEA

Annex to the Annual Report
related to the financial year 2020

Statement on the Corporate Governance

Sections

Provisions to be replaced

Al

The company must have an Intemnal
Repgulation of the Board of Dhirectors that
includes terms of reference related 1o the
Board and the key management functions of
the company. The admimstration of the
conflict of interests at the Board level
should also be dealt with in Board
Regulation.

YES

NO

If WO, then Explain

YES

A,

Any other professional engagements of the
Board members, including the position of
execulive or non-executive Board member
in other companies (excluding affiliated
companies) and non-profit instibutions, will
be brought 1© the attention of the board prior
to the appointment and during the term of
the mandate.

A3,

YES

Each member of the board shall inform the
Board of eny relationship with a sharcholder
whao directly or indirectly has shares
representing not less than 5% of the toal
voting rights.

YES

Ad

Al

Pl Ao il L

The annual report must inform whether an
evaluation of the Board has taken place
under the chairmanship of the President. It
must also contain the number of meetings of
the Board.

PARTIAL

In the course of 2021, the
evaluation criteria will be
developed by the Board of
Directors

The prme&um on the cooperation with the
Authorized Consultant for the peried duning
which this cooperation is imposed by the
Bucharest Stock Exchange shall contain at
least the following:

AL

The contact person with the Authorized
Consultapg -

AS2

A3

The frequency of the appointments with the
Authorzed Consultant that will be at least
ance @ month and whenever evenis or new
information imvolve the submission of
current or periodic reports so that the

| Authorized Consultant can be consulted.

Obligation to provide the Authorized
Consuliant with all relevant information and
any information that is reasonably required
by the Authonzed Consultant or is
necessary 10 the Authorized Consultant in

fulfilling his'her responsibilities;

YES




A4,

Obligation to inform the Bucharest Stock
Exchange about anv mallunction oocurring
in the framework of the cooperation with
the Authorized Consualtant,

YES

B.l.

The Board will adopt & policy 50 that any
transaction of the company with a
subsidiary representing 3% or more of the
net assets of the company, according Lo the
most recent fingncial reports, is approved by
the Board.

The company has no
subsidiaries. If they shall be
sl up, the Boand will adopt
a policy in this respect.

B.2.

The internal audit must be carmed out by a
separate orpanizational structure {internal
audit department) within the company or by
the services of a third independent party,
who will report to the Board and within the
company will report directly to the General
Manager.

YES

The Company will publish in the annual
report & section that will include the total
revenues of the members of the Board and
of the general manager for the respective
financial year and the total value of all
bonuses or of anv variable compensation
and. as well as the key assumptions and
principles for calculating the incomes
mentioned above,

DLl

YES

In addition to the information provided in
the legal provisions, the company's website
will contain a section dedicated to the
Relation with the Investors, both in
Romanian and English languages, with all
relevant information of interest 1w the
INVEesLors, inn]uding:

e et T —

The main regulations of the company, in
particular the constitutive act and the
internal regulations of the stautery bodies;

YES

The CVs of statutory body members

The current reports and the periodical
reports,;

YES
YES

Information on shareholders” general
meetings; the agenda and the related

D.1.5.

AT TT T

Information on the corporate events such as 1

the payment of dividends or other events
that result in obtaining or limiting the rights
of a shareholder, including deadlines and
the principles of such operations;

YES

YES

D.1.6.

Other extraordinary information that should
be made public: cancellation / modification
! initistion of cooperation with an
Authorized Consultant: sipning / renewing /
terminating an agreement with o Market
Marker,

YES




The company must have a function of
Relations with the Investors and 1o include
in the dedicated section of this function, on
the Company's website, the names and
contact details of a person who is able 1o
provide the appropnate information upon
request.

YES

D2.

—

A compeny must have adopted a company”s
dividends policy as a set of directives
relating to the distribution of the net proti
that the company claims to respect. The
principles of the dividend policy should be
published on the company’s website.

MO

This prowision is due 1o he
fulfilled in the wear 2021

D.3.

=l

A company must have adopted a policy on
forecasts to be published on the company’s
websile.

MO

This provision is due 1o be

fulfilled in the year 2021

4.

A company must 561 the date and place of a
general meeting so as to allow the
participation of as many shareholders as
possible,

YES

D3,

The financial reports will include
information in both Romanian and English
languages on the main factors which are
influencing changes in sales, operating
profit, net profit or any other relevant
financial indicator.

YES

6.

The company will hold at least one meeting
I telephone conference with analysts and
investors each vear. The information
presented on these occasions will be
published in the Relations with the Investors
section from the company's website at the
lime of that meeting £ telephone conference.

SOLE ADMINISTRATOR

N

It was considered that the
continuous and periodic
repotts prepared by the
company for the disclosure
of the financial items were
relevant from the point of
view of the information
necessary lor the investors.

1OAN PAUNA
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F10-pag. 1
BILANT
la data de 31.12.2020
Cod 10 -lal -
Denumirea elementului Nr. Sold la:
L rd.
nlapaliy 01.01.2020 31.12.2020
Forimnibd e cibeul s 1elerp s Neard, S ezl [T o
A E 1 2
A, ACTIVE IMOBILIZATE
L IMOBILIZAR NECORPORALE
1.Chelvieli de constituire (ct.201-2301) iF] a1
2 Cheltuielile de dervoltare (ot 203-2803-7903) 0z | 02
3 ffﬁnmflunl. _bfqvete, licenpe, marci comerciabe, dreptur 5 active similare e | o 12,147 541
5i alte imobifizar necorporale [ct. 205 + 208 - 2805 - 3808 - 2005 - 2908)
4. Fond comerclal {ct. 2071 -2807) o 4
5Active necorporale deexplorare si evaluare a rasurselor minarale . a5
(Ct. 206-2806-2906)
&, Avansur (CLA054 - 4504) s | DE
TOTAL [rd.01 Iz 06} 6| o7 12147 a1
il. IMOBILIZARI CORPORALE
1. Terenun si construchl [t 211 + 212 - 28171- 2612 - 2917 - 3912) iz 16, 12R.124 15.544.6684
4 Ins.taia?i.l-tehmce sl maginl (cf, 213+ 223 - 3813 - 2913) ; 05 DITINS 282454
3. Alwe instalagil, utllaje s mobilier ot 214+ 334 - 2814 - 29214} o I ] 13.444 15.7A1
4, Imvestitli imobilizes (o, 315 - 2815 - 2915) AR |
5. Imobilizarn corporabe incurs de execotie (0. 331-2931) 12 B2 1 R4 Hra14)
i rvestitil imobiliare in curs de executie [ct, 235-2935) B3| 13
Tbcthve corporale de expborare si evaluare a resurselor minesale » ”
lct. 216-2B16-2916)
8.Active biologhce productive (ct.217+227-2817-2017) 1= ] 15
5. Avansuri (ct. 4093 - 2803 g | 16
TOTAL {rd. 0B I2 16] x| 17 17.087.689 16.553.333
L IMOBILIZAR FINAMCIARE
1. Actluni definute la filiala ict. 261 - 7961) e [ 14 1033600 1.033.600
L Imprumuturi acordate entitétiior din grup fct. 2671 + 2672 - 2964) I3 19 |
3. Actiunile detinute la entitatile asociabe 5i la éntitatibe controlate in % | 20
comuny [t 263+ 263 - 2963}
4, Imprurmutur acordate sntitiyilor asociate § entitatilor controlate in i | %
comun [t 2673 + 2674 - 2965}
5, Alte tithuri imobilizate (ct. 265 - 2963} 2 | 22
et EE:E;E-?;[;ELUT i +2679° - 2966" - 2068 sl i i
TOTAL {rd. 18 Ia 23) M 24 1034 487 1,034.487
ACTIVE IMOBILIZATE - TOTAL {rd. 07 + 17 + 24) I_.ll"-é*-ll ofi1 !i:n: g -| 16,1 3.-1,,31&{ 17.588.361
|B. ACTIVE CIRCULANTE aslapr |l |
|, STOCUR! R i i
9 ] MER TN

s
e

'I_ il il L
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F10 - pag, 2
1. Materii prime $i materiale consumabile ict. 301 + 302 + 303 +/- 308 4327 4 |
322+ 373 + 328+ 357 + 358+ 381 +/- 388 - 301 - 302 - 3051 - 3958 - 398} | 20 H30d il
. Produwctia i curs de execulle {ct 337+ 332 + 347+~ 348" - 353 - 3341 - 7 17 1.047.924
3952)
1. Produse finite 5i misfurl (cf, 345 + 3486+ 347 +/-348° + 354 + 156+ 357 =
367 & 310 4308 4 377 4327 40- ATH- 3945 - 3946 - W47 - 3053 - 3954 - 3055~ | 04 23 BBAT.350 A.A74.845
3956 - 3957 - 395~ 397 - din ci. 4428}
4. Avansur (ch. 40971-4901) L 9 B492.513 11.978.557
TOTAL {rd. 26 |a 29) an an 15.169.452 194729149
Il CREANTE (Sumele care wrmeazi sd fiz Incasate dupd o pericadd mal mare
cle un an trebule prezentate separat pertru figcare element.)
1. Creanfe comerciale 1) (ct. 2675 + 2676 "+ 267" + 2670 - 2966 - HIGAS 4
4092 + 411+ 413 + 41E - 4902- 457) & 3 12408874 FA17.580
1 Sume de Incasat de |2 entitdtile afiliate (ct 451" - 495%) 2 33
1. 5ume de incasat de [z entitdlle asociate s entitatille confralate in comun W |-4d
fct. 453 - 405¥)
3. Ale creante o, 425 42B23443 1 1456 + AET 5+ 387+ 441° 444244 lin
CLASIE™ 44475 e 440 H 4460 T L2 4B 2 H AR I L4002+ 461 + 4735 - 405 + L] EL| T375ad 7497 6ET
3187)
5. Capital subscris 5i mevdrsat (ot 456 - 495¥) L 35
&. Creamte reprezentand dividende repartizate in cursul exercitlulul finandiar i 363
fct. 453) {5071}
TOTAL (rd. 31 la 35 +35a) ¥ | 36 13.146.636 8215373
NL INVESTITI PE TERMEN SCURT
1. Actiumi definute la entitatile afilate (ct, 501 - 591) 7 | 37
2. Alte inwestith pe barmen scurt =l &
[ct, 505 & 506 4 507 + din ct. 508 - 505 - 596 - 508 + 5113 + 5114} .
TOTAL [rd. 37 + 38] 0 | 38
V. CASA 51 CONTURI LA BANCI
felim ct. SO+t 5112 + 512 + 531 + 532 + 541 + 542) o f == SEREE, XaEbs
ACTIVE CIRCULAMTE - TOTAL (rd. 30+ 36 + 39 + 40) a1 30.6B5.315 31235
€. CHELTUIELI TN AVANS (ct 471) ird.43+44) 42 | 42
Sume de reluat intr-0 perioada de pana ka umnan {din o 47 1% 4 | 43
Sume de peluat inte-o pericads mal mare de un an (din o, 4714 45 | 44
D. DATORIE SUMELE CARE TREBUIE PLATITE INTR-O PERIOADA DE PANA
LA 1AM
1, imprumutur din emisiunea de chligatiuni, prezentdndu-se separat i 45
T prumaturile din emisiunes de obligatiuni convertibille ot 161 + 1681 - 169}
L Summe datarate instivutilor de cradit (et 1621 + 1622 + 1624 + 1625 +
1627 + 1682 + 5191 + 5192+ 5198) 7| 44 14.767.141 15.806.574
1, Awansuri incasate in contul comengilor (ct, 419} % | 47
4, Datoril comarciale « furnizor (ot 400 + 404 4 408 de | 44 558.255 A32.537
5. Efecte de comert de platit (ct. 403 + 405} 50 49
6. Sume datorate entitiyllor dingrp [cf. 16871 + 1685 + 2691 + 451455} 5 ah
7. Sume datorate sntithyilor aseciate s entitatilor contralate in comun (ot . PEA RN & € s
16631606+ 2692+ 2603+ 45355 '

itk |
I

L

Fer muboniiciy
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&. Alte-datoril, inchesiv datorille fiscale i datorile priving asiguririle sociale
et 1623 = 1626+ 167 4 1687 + 2605 + 421 + 423 + 424 + 436 + 427 + 4281 =
AJTHEV L ATEEREL AT L 40T ¢ AT L ANTT FAAIESE | ey Jpeee i3 L2 S04 554 612 808
A47%%% + BT = 455 + 4565 + 457 + 4581 + 460 = 4061+ 4735 + 509 + 5186
+ 5193 4 5794 + 5195 + 5196+ 5197)
TOTAL (rd. 45 la 52) 4 53 16020080 16,562,009
E. ACTIVE CIRCULANTE NETE/DATORH CURENTE NETE .
{rd. #1243-53-70-73-76) | - VieS1.047 14.334.389
F.TOTAL ACTIVE MINLUS DATORI CURENTE (rd. 25+44+54) i = A2785.3TF0 31.842.750
G. DATORI: SUMELE CARE TREBUIE PLATITE INTR-O PERIOADA
MAI MARE DE 1 AN
1. Imprumesturt din emisiunea de obligatiuni, prezentindu-se separat | 58
imprumutdribe din emisiunea de obligatiuni convertiblle (ot 167 + 1681 - 169)
2. 5ume datorate institufiilor de credit (ct, 1637 + 1622 < 1624 = 1625 + F - 3
1E|2.'-"1—1E|EZ+5'!E|'I+51'i|2+51E|E} 3
3. Avansur incasate in contul comenzilor (ot 4190 i9 s
4, Datorii cormerciale - furnizos (ot 401 + 404 + 2DE) = |
5. Efecte de comerf de platit (ot 403 + 405} & | &0
6, surne datorabe entititdor din grup (et 1641 + 1685 + 2681 + 451+ &2 &1
¥, Sume datorate entitatior asoclate sl entitatilor contredase in comun . 62
[ct. T663 + 1686 + 2692 +26593+ 4537
B, Alte datorll, Inclushy datorile fiscabe gi datorile privind asigurdrile socale
fiet, 1623 + 1626 + 167 + 1687 + 2695 4 421 + 423 + 424 + 426 + 427 + 4281 +
A3 4 IENRE A7 L ATRT + RATS 4 4023 + BATETH 4 44T L 46T 4| & | 63 o
47 BT 455 + 456" | 4581 202 H466T - 47355 £ 509 + 5186 + 5163
+ 5194 4+ 5195 + 5196 + 5197)
TOTAL (rd.56 le 63) 23 64 0
H. PROVIZIOAME
I. Provizicane pentru beneficiile angajatilos (ot 1515+1517) . f5
Z, Provizioane pentry impozite (cf, 1516} &7 | 68
3, Adte provizioans (L 1511+ 1512+ 1513 + 1514 « 1518) Y] a7 2163 1,345
TOTAL {rd, 85 la &7) ] &4 21631 3345
L VENITURIIN AVANS
1. Subventii pentru investitil (ct 475 ed. 70:71) Mo a8 269,695 2524951
Surne de rebual intr-o perioada de pana la unan [din ot 475%) H 70
surma de rebuat intr-o perioada mal mare de un an din ct. 475Y) b | 769,655 752951
2, Venituri inregistrate in avans (ct. 472 {rd.73 + 74} n| A 14,188 1617
Surrne-de rebuat intr-o pesioada de pana la un an idin ot 472%) o 73 14,188 TE6T7
Sume de reluat intr-o perioads mai mare de un an {din ct. 472% i T
3. Venituri In avans aferente activelor primite prin transfer de la clienti B
fct. 478)[rd. 76+77)
Sume de rebyat intr-o perioada de panala wnan (din ct, 478%) 7 76
Suma o reduat intr-o perioada mai mare de unean Jdin ot A7E) 4 77 |
Fond comercial negativ (c1 2075) m | 7B
TOTAL [rd. 69 + 72 + 75+ 78] & 74 PE3AR3 264568
J.CAPITAL 5 REZERVE JPA Audit & L
I. CAPITAL 5 T AN
1. Capital subscris warsat {ct. 1012 = & | =30 B.177.653 8.1 3?.|5.53E

ST 1)L L
Piiirm Ll T
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L I:.;E-ita.l 'i;.uhsm; nevareat ek 1017}

2 B
3. Patrimondul reglel (cf, 1015) CE g2
4. Patrimaniul stitutelor nationale de cercetare-dezvoltars (ct. 1075] & | B3
S.ARe elemente de capitalun propii (1031) BS | B4
TOTAL {rd. BO |2 84) 45 | H5 B.177.653 8.177.853
IL. PRIME DE CAPITAL [ct. 104) 87 | 8a
Il. REZERVE DIN REEVALUARE (ct. 105 & | &7 16.280.773 16.280.773
IV. REZERVE
1. Rezerve legale [ct. 10&1] B¢ | B4 1635531 1.635.531
4. Rezerve stalutare sau contractuale (cf, T063) 0 | 89 347.987 347.947
3. Alte rezerve [ct. 1068] CER 1 4750173 5.038.527
TOTAL {rd. 88 la 80| G - 6,773,601 7023045
Actiunl propril {ct. 109) g2 | 42
Chatigur legate de instrumentele de capitaluri proprii (ct. 141) w | 93
Fierderi legate de instrumentele de capitaluri proprii (el 143} 9z 54
V. FROFITUL SAL PIERDEREA REPORTATIA) SOLDC |ct.117) B | 95 43 244
SOLD D [ct. 117 4% | 948 i
VL PROFITUL SAU PIERDEREA EXERCITIULUI FINANCIAR
SOLDC [ct, 127) 97 12184883 205,983
SOLD D |ct. 127) 58 i 0
Rapartizarea profitubul (ct, 125 w | 99 i
ﬂi.;ﬁ-:lﬂ'l:;.;ml FROFRH - TOTAL {rd. B5+86+87+91-92+93-94+95-96 wt | 100 13 404 044 11 606,454
Patrimaniul puibilic (< 1018 | om
Fatrimaon sl peavat (ot 101712 oz | 102
CAPITALURI - TOTAL [rd. 1001074 102] (rd.254- 41+ 42-53-64-68-70) ] fod | 103 32.494.044 31686454

=i Contun de repartizat dupd ratura elementelor respectne,
= Soldun delitoare ale conturilor respectve
=48] Sodduwi creditoare ale canturllar respective.

1} Somnele insoose i acest idnd § prebuste din osmiul 2975 be 2479 reprrennh creatijele il

oormracheor o beasing Mifenciar i allos ceninacs il milalr, pugump aile crsange irokiirale, ssedanie
Frro periosdh mal robcd & 12 luai
A 56 v compl e de CETne A ke clidea B dua idents pravecksls Cidimubai minhindu Aremgekcr

phabdioa i al mendity s delegal pardru bugs) pr, BRI panin spmbarea Precipinloe privied miscmines
 ebyalifare s mrevrarelul cordalbcet ol busuriarimobdle proprisie privatl o il 71 dreptusior
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la data de 31.12.2020

CONTUL DE PROFIT 51 PIERDERE
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Cod 20 - Tei -
Exercitiul financiar
Denumirea indicatorilor Nr.
Kr ., rd.
e 2019 2020
o irdede ch caligll se pripa i8 Maadl din ool =
A ] 1 2
1, Cifra de afaceri natad (rd, 02+03-04-+06| ai a1 FR545211 £31525825
Produciis vandutd (et 00+ 702+ 7034 704+ 7054706+ T az ] 1708072 6165175
Vanitur dinvanzarea marfurilor ot f07) a ai BF 337130 AG.587 350
Reduceri comertiale acordate {ct, 709 oo | 04 |
! et el AT P Bt radinte din Reaivtral ; &
Variturl din subvenil de exploatare aferente cifrel de afacer mete (ct7411)| o {6
2. Menituri aferente costulul productiei Incurs de executse (CL7114712)
Sold C i1 a7 a 1376285
Sold D ar 4 6158554 i
¥ :r:tn;tﬂlflr-ll-di'!;l?.lmuqm i namrpnrﬂe ¥ ENFII'EH Ge oS 43,509 19778
4. Venitun din reevaluarea imobdlizdnlor comporade {ct. #55) 09 10
5. Venitur din preductia de investifi imobiliare {ct. 725) g 1
6. Yenituri din subventii de axploatare i '3
L 74T+ 413 + 7404+ 7415 = 7416 + M7 + 7419
7. Alte wenitur din exploatars (o, 7514758+ 7815) 12 13 B53174 755508
-din care, venituri din subventil pentrg e stitii (ot 7584) 13 14
-gdin care, wenltwrl din fondul comercial negativ (C1.7815) br 15
VENITURI DIN EXPLOATARE - TOTAL {rd. 01407-08+05+10+11+12413) 15 16 TIBB3.640 55244106
& aj) Cheluleli cu materiiie prirme s mataralele consumabdle (o601 +6037) 14 17 2.765.224 4.532.930
Alte cheluiell matenale (ct.603+604-+-606-+608] I 18 16012 G566
by Atte cheftulel externa (U energie 5 apalcla05) e 1] 254624 2312033
) Cheltulel privind marfurile (ct.607) I 30 51.733.401 41.275.863
Reduceri comerciale primite (ot a09) an I 05380 34737
9. Cheftuleli cu personalul (rd. 33+24) e 27 23470378 1375414
&) Salari i indemnizald (L641+642 4643 +5644) a2 23 2255450 1353235
b Cheltuiedl cu asigurdrile sl protectia soclald [cra45+648) 2 24 B7.538 A1.189
10,8 ?::fﬂt_ﬂ;ﬂ vialoarg privind imobiizide -:mpc-rahﬁi-'e.emrp-:-rate BER 790,008 o7 744
2.1} Cheltuieli (et 6811+6813+88174 din ct6818) L [I,'”ﬂm_‘ o] 26 790,008 797,244
2.7} Venituri (ct7813 + din ct7818) | o5 AR 3% | =
b Ajustad de valoare privind sctivels circulants {rd, 29 - : o T na T s ol 28 317,807 518.668]

1 5L LS ok e el
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b.7) Cheettuiell (ct.654+6814 + din cLEB14) & | 20 482687 665,969
b2) Venituri {ct.754+47614 + din c1.7818} e £ 164,280 15830
11. Alte cheltuieli de exploatare (rd. 32 la 37) ki 1 3255142 ¢35I.??E
" ﬁ.:lz:ﬂﬂiﬂ?;?ﬁ:":j;:;z+u523+53+.-535+525+51n51m e 3110441 e
112 Cheltuieli cu alte impozite, taxe 5 varsaminte asimilate;
chaftuleli reprezentand transferur s contribufll datorate in baza unos 13 il 293.364, 300030
acte normative specalelct. 635 + 6586"]
113, Cheltuieli cu protectia mediului inconjurdtor (ct, 653] |34
114 Cheltuleli din reevabuarea Imoklizarber corporale (cf. 6554 14 35
11.5. Cheltulell privird calamitdfile st alte everdmente similare (cf. 4587) E 36
115 Alte chaltuiell |ct 851+ 55814 6582 + 6583 + G584 4 BEEH] ki3 37 48.734 Hﬁ.
Registrbgeneraba-care Mk oirbaresontrsste dulsssmeg-ehE6eN e
Ajustdn priving provizioanals rd, 40- 41| a7 39 -13.394 -18 285
= Cheltulell {ct.6812| 2% 40 a0 3.345
-Weniturd [chTE1 2] a8 41 35.025 21.631
170 20- 21122 25428431+ 39 ] Kl DO MO
FROFITUL SAL PIEADEREA DI EXPLOATARE:
- Profit (rd, 16-42] a1 43 24311 .""3;J 1.147.931
- Plerdere rd, 42 - 16) 42 44 L ]
12, Venituri din intarese de participare {01761 1476124761 3) 43 45 112551 {
- din care, veniturlle obfinute de |2 éntitdfile afiliate L] 46 112.551
13 Venitur din dolbidnai [ct. 766) 4 47 73 3
= dir core, yeniturite obfinute de & entitifile sfiliate 46 4B
14. Venituri din subventii de exploatare pentru dobinda datorats (ct. 741 8] h 49
i 5. Altevenitun financlae (o0 763+ T644+ TR TAT=TRE+T615) X S0 TR0 7150
-din care, venituri din alte Imohilizdd financlare | ct. 7615} a9 51
VENITUR]I FINAMCIARE - TOTAL [rd. 45+37+459+50) # 52 149,954 LN
IE... Alusta de.v-ah:!ima privind irnobilizirile financiare si investifidle financlare | 5 a3
detinute ca active circulante [rd, 54 - 85}
- Chieltuiell (c1.686) 5 c4
- Venlturi [ct,786) 5 55
17, Cheltuieli privind dobanzile {ct446) 54 1] Q43583 B 957
= din care, cheltwlielile n relagia ou entitifile afifiate 55 57
18. Alte chettuieli financlane (ct663+864+-685+667+G6E) L3 58 18.606 14961
CHELTUIELI FINAMCIARE - TOTAL {rd. 53+56+58) 57 55 952,169 71528
PROFITUL SAU PIERCEREA FINANCLARIA):
= Profit (ind. 52 - 59) JEA Awllh & Con g £+ &0 a L]
- Pierdere {rd, 59 - 52) L B 2.2351 704.757

05 APR. 711
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I'U'E"IITI.FH.I TOTALE |rd. 16 + 521 &0 6 73E33.574 35.251,277
CHELTIHELI TOTALE (rc. 42 + 59] &1 63 TEI21 B35 54 508.103
19, PROFITUL SAL PIERDEREA BRUTIAY
- Proflt (rd. 62 - 63) & | &4 1.610.938 443.173
= Ferdere (rd. 63 - 62) & fi5 i H]
20. Impozitul pe prafit (CLES1) & | 86 392.255 737191
21, Impozitul specific unor activital o 695) &Y a7
21, Alte impozite neprezantats la elementele de mai sus (ct.698) &4 BB
23. PROFITUL SAU PIERDEREA NET{A] A EXERCITIULUI FINAMNCIAR:
~ Profit (rd, 84 - 85 - 66 - 67 -E—BI- o 65 1. 218,683 205,983
- Pierdere (rd, 65 + 66 + 67 + 68 - G4] i 70 0 o

) Comturi da repartizat dups natura elermantelar respective.

La randul 23 (el O0WF e, 587 2027]- 42 cupring §i drepturile colabaratorilar, stabifte potrivit legislatiel mundl, care s preiau din olajul debinee al

contulyi 621 Cheltuieli cu colaboratarii®, anafitic .Colabaraton persoane fizice”™

Lavramgul 32 [of O8F ne 58/ 20211 In coniul 6586 JCheltuiel reprezenting transferor § cortributii datorate in baza unar acte normatve
speclale™sa evideniiazd cheltuial e reprezentind transferuri $i contribatii datarate inbaza unor acte normative speciale, aftele decst cele prevhnite

diz Cadul fiscal
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DATE INFORMATIVE ladatade 31.12.2020
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Eﬂd 30 fermmuile de faleal s rfannta Nrad. aes cot - fei -
Hr.rd. ﬂ
I. Date privind rezultatul inregistrat i “L' Nr.unitati Sume
b h1]
A B 1 2
Unitati care au Inregistrat peofit a1 01 1 205.583
Unitati care au inreqglstrat pierdere i¥] 0z
Unitafi care nu au [nregistrat nici profit, nici péerdere i3 03
Nt Total Pentru Pentru
Il Date privind platile restante rdi din car'e’ activitatea | activitatea de
) ' curenta investitii
A B 1=2+3 2 3
Flati restante - total (rd 05 + 09+ 1518 17 + 18) o | 04
Furnlzar restantl - total {red. 06 la 08} a5 0s
- peste 30 de zile (-] 2]
- peste $0.de zile 67 | o7
- peste T an (] 08
Obdigatii restante fata de bugetul asigurarller sociale - -
totalird. 10 Ja 14}
-cantributil peritru asiguran sociale de stat datorste de | |
angajatorl, sakariati 5 alte persoane asimilate
- cantributii pentra fondul asigurarilos sociale de ] i
sanatate
- condribulla pentru pensla suplimentan | 12
= contributii pentru Bugetul asigurariior pentru somaj H 13
= alte datorii sociale ] 14
Ohbligatil restante fata de bugetele fonduiior speciale si
¥ i1 15
alte fonduri
Cebligati restante fata de-alti credipod 15 | 16
Impaozite, cantributil si taxe neplaiite la termenul stabidit - i
la bugetul de stat, din care;
- contributia asiguratorie pentry munca 15 ._.L;‘.,’I
Inpeozite 51 fawe replatite b termenul s2abillt s bugetels » 18
lzzaba
Bir.
L. Numar mediu de salariati rdr 3322019 31.12.2020
A B 1 2
Murmar mediu de salarist] w19 58 47
Mumarul efectiv de salariati existenti la sfarsitul pericadai, Tt a1 59 A3
respectiv la data de 31 decembrie
IV. Redevente plitite in cursul pericadei de raportare, Nr. Ssume (lel
subventii incasate si creante restante rel.
a B | 1
Redevente plitite in cursul pericade de raportane pentru bunuride din domeniul T
P X ) gz | A AR & L U0
{public, prmite in I:ﬂl'll.'_.E_:i'I_l.Il\E,d|r1 Care!
- redevente pentru bunurile din domeniul public plitite la bugetul de stat el By 5 APR. 201
1mﬁmlnbrﬁ [ABLE Lo bugetul de stat kS ﬁT M e T
e gl
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Redevantd petrolierd phatitd s bugetul de stat 5 24
Chirii pl&tite i cursul p-anual:l'; de raporiare pentru terenur 1) % | 75 789,758
Wenitur brute din servicii plitlie citre parsoane nerezidente, din care: | 28
= impazitul datorat fa bugetul de stat w | 27
ituri brute din servici platite citre parsoane nerezidente din statele membeoe ale | 28
Uniunii Europene, din cars:
= impozitul datorat la bugetul de stat wo| 29
ﬁmﬂﬁmsﬂtin cursul perioadei de raportare, din care: 1 | 30
= subvenlii incasate in cursul pericadeai de raportare aferente activelor | N
= subwventll aferente venlwurilos, din care: iy | 33
- subweniii pentru stimulares ocupnd Tortei de munca *) ¥ | 3
Fulieantii pertru energie din surse regenerakile 1 .:?:1
= subwentll pentri combustibl fosil g 'ﬂl;’l
[Creante restante, care nu au fost incasate la termenele previzute in contractele 4 24 3302093
amerciabe gifeau in actele normative in vigoare, din care;
-creante restante de la entitasi din sectord majoritar s integral de stat M | 35
= creanie restanta de la entitag din sectorud privat L a8 2302.093
V. Tichete acordate salariatilor :':: Sume (lei)
A B 1
Contravaloarea tichetelor acordate salaratibor a | 37 158.440
Contravaloaraa tichetelor acordate altor categorii de beneficiar, altii dacat satanati | 41 f"
Vi. Cheltuieli efectuate pentru activitatea de i
pe o 31.12.2019 31.12.2020
cercetare - dezvoltare ) rd.
A B 1 2
Cheltuisll de cercetare - dezvoltane | a2 Bt ]
- dini eare, efeciuste B scopul diminudi impactule sctivitati
antitdtil amspra mediulul sau 8l devoltani unor nod 41 -:i?;l
tehnolegil sau a unor produse mai sustenabile !
- dupa surse de finantare (rd. 40441} 44 E 1] i
= din fordur publice E1] 40
= din fonduri private # | 41
- dupa naturs cheltuiglilor {rd, 43424} 4 | 42 o L)
= cheltuiell curente L2 a3
- cheluieli de capital 4y | a4
Vil Cheltuieli de inovare ***) Mol 3192:2019 31.12.2020
A B 1 F
Cheltuizl de inovare &0 45
- i care, efectuate T scoprl dirninuar impachulul acthitatil -
entitatil asupra mediului sau al deTvodtdni unor nol E1l ";;_;]
tehrsalogl saw 8 unor prodisse mai sustenghile |
Nr.
VIl Alte informatil r; 31.72.2019 31.12.2020
A B 1 2
Avansurn acordate pentru imobillizin necorporzle i e
fct. 4094), din care:
- avansur| acordate entitaflics neafiliate nerezidants o | e ";.- el iy
pentru imobilizan necorporake (din ot 4094) a (ELEEl

| s
oo isilomi sswisiom proncy
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- avansurl acorclate entitdtilor afillste nerezidente pentru | | 4
imaobilizari necarpoerabe {din ot 2094) ’ 1304
Avensuri acordate penbr imabifizdn corporale " it
ot 409 3), dincare:
- avansurl poordate entithlor neafiliste rerezidents peantru o AT
imobiiizdrl corporale (din ok $053] 0k
-avansurl arordate antitatilor afiliate nerezidente pentru & | 4
imobilizari corponabe (din ot $0593] (=L
Imobilizarn financizgre, in sume brute (rd, 49-+54) 54 A8 1.034.487 1.034.487
Actiunl deginute la entitdtile afiliate, interase de
particpare, alte titlur imobilizate § obligatiuni, Tn sume 5¢ | 49 1,033,600 1.023.600)
brute (rd. 50+ 51 + 52 + 53
- actiuni necolate amise de rezidant) ] 50
- partl sociale emiie de rezldent] bl 51 1.033.600 1.033.600
-actluni sl partl soclale emise de nerezident],din cass: i 52
- detineri de cel putin 10% i I;j;l
- obligativni emize de nerecidenti 6 53
Creante imobilizate, in sume brute (rdl 554-586) a5 54 Ay Bar
- creante Imobilzate in el & exprimate 0 el a cancr
decontare se face in functie de cursul unei valute 66 55 BE7 Ha7
(dimct. 267)
- creante imobilizate in valutd (din ok 267] 7 56
Creanpe comerclale, avansurl pentru curmpdrin de bunurl de
natura stacuriler i pantru prestani de senicii acondate
furnizorilar 51 alte conturl asimitate, in seme boete “ ot SRR 2LO50T3
(ct. 5097 + 4092 4+ 451 4 413 4+ 418), dincare
- cresrpe camerciale in relatia cu 2ntitatile reafiliate rerezdents,
awansi pentre cumpardn de bunun de natura stacurilon §i pentu
prestan de servidl aoordate fumizorilor neafiliat nereridenti gl ale | &0 ] 305.833 573505
canburi azimilats, in surte brute in relaps oo n!ﬂﬁEﬂiimrEﬁid&nﬁ
ioimcE 209 +dinct, 392 4 dinet. S1 T+ dinct 413 # dmn et $18)
= crearte cormardiale in relatia cu entitiile Mfliate nereridente,
avansul pentru cumpdnde de bunurl de natura stocurikor 5 pentre -
prestin de sendcii acordate fumizodlar afilia) neregiden ¢ aie i mn:I
~atun asimilate, in feme brute in relatio cu afiliatil nerezidenti {din
CLAOET + dif el 4092 + dn et 417 + din el 473 + dinct 418)
[ nelncasate la te I stabilit
Thany sl saliainges _ 7| sg 1634727 2302093
[din ct, 4097 = din ct, 4052 + din €. 417 + din ¢t 413)
Creanhe in legalurd cu persanalul sioontwr asimilate " .
ot 425+ 4282)
Creante in legiturd cu begetul asigurdritor sociale s bugetul
statubial [din ct, $31+A36+437+4283+ 447 + 4424 + 4428 + 71 61 168,252 650821
A4 4 445 £ 485 £ 447 4 4487 | (rd B2 12 B8]
= creante in legaburs cu bugetul asigurariior socisle o &3
(et A1 +437+4382)
- creante fiscabe in legatura cu bugetel statului
(CLAZEL 441 <4904 14425 444 5 446) 5 63 168262 655821
- subwventii de Incasatict.445] 75 4
- fonduri spaciale - tase =i varsarminte asimdlate [ct.447) r L
=alte creante inlegatura cu bugetul statuluilct 4482 T O s
Creantele entitdtii in relatiibe cu entivitile afiliate M L T
|ci. 457}, dim care: s
- craanfe cu ontitati afiliate nerezidonte - &8 j ELETE

(din ct. 451}, din care:

+yidi 1l ai
Frpiry hlenilienly
s
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contractulul de credit este mal miga de 1an)
idin ct. 519, (rd .97+98)

||_nﬁ AP

, |

- creante comerclale cu entitdt afdiate P &9
nerezidents (din ct. 451}
Creante in begdturd cu bugetul asiguranlor sociale si bugetul
statulul neincasate la termencd stabilit {dinct. 431+ din col.
438 = din ol 437 # din cb 4382 + din cl. 441 + din cl. & | 70
4424 + din ot 4428 + din cl. 444 + din cl. 445 + din cl.
446 + din cb. 447 + din ct, 4487} 1
e 453 + 4 i 461 + 47 i
.:: creante (o1 + 456 + 4587 + 461 + 4662 + 4 1+4?3LI a | 7 S68.701 137.865
ncarg |
= gdecontar privind interesele de participane decontan cu
actionaril! asoclatil privind capitahul decomard din &4 72
operatiuniin participatie {ct45344064-4508.2)
= alte creante in legatura cu perscanele fizice si
perscansle juridice, altele decat ereantels in legatura cu
imstitutiile peblice {institutiile statului e i RS
{din ot 451 + din ¢t 477 + dir et A7 3+4662)
= sumele prefuate din contul 542 "Avansuri de trezorerie’
reprezentind avansurile de trexorerle, scordate potrivitbegii | & 74
Jnedecontate pénd la data de raportare [din ct. 461)
Diobénzi de incasat |ct. 5187) |, din care: LH 5
- de la nerezidenti # | 78
Diobdnz de incasat de [a nerezidenti (din ct 4518 + din ct. e g
A53E} (A13]
‘Wakoarea Imprumuturilor accrdete operatarilos = 77
sconomicl ==}
Irwestifil pe tarmen Scurt, in fume brube 1k 301 + 505 + 506 o 21
+ 507 4 din ct.508), din care:
- actiuni necotate emise de rezidentd ) I
- partl saciale amise de rezident EE B0
- actiuni emite ge nereziderdi 9y 8
- pbiigatiuni emise de nerezidant 95 | B2
- detimed de obligafiyni werzi ue -::::r.
Alte valori de fncasat (L 5113 +5114) 7 | B3
Zasa i lel sl Tnovaluts (rd B5+86 | EH A4 14,185 16,200
-in ke ot 5311) L &85 14, 1RS5 16.203
-invalutd (ct, 3374} od HE
Conturi curente i3 bancl in lel s in valuts (rd B8+90} ol ar 2350494 31530524
- bed [ct, 5127), chirdarg: 2| 88 1 850,970 2.575.197
- conturl curente Tn ki deschise la banci nerezidente e ag
- in valuts fer 31240, din cane: | 90 Af5 524 Sa4.331
- contun curente in valutd deschise la bina s
nEreridents J
Alte conturl curente Iz bdncl st acraditlve, {rd.93+94} I o7
- sumae in curs de decontare, acreditive 5i alte valoride | 03
incazat, Inlei (ck 5112 +dinct. 5125 + 547 1]
- sume in curs de decontare 5 acredithee invaluta [din - B4 ]
fct. 5125+ 5414)
|Datorii frd, 96 + 99+ 102+ 103 + 106+ 108+ 110+ 111 +
116+ 119 4 122 + 128) e | 95 1387126 1.067.052
Credite bancare externe pe termen scurt (credite primite de I
la Institutli financiare nerezidente pentru care durata T a6 JPA :‘Lm_":"

frar i i i o
Ploaiici
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=i bei I a7
~in walutd 2 S8
 Credite bancare extenne pe termen lung (credite primite de
la institutii financiare nerexicente pentru cane durata i | og
contractului de credit este malmare sau egald cu 1 an} :
(ol ct, 162}, rd, 100+707)
- lej A C I R I
= fmvalutd RET W 13 I
Credite de la trezoreria statulul & dobanzile aferente foi. | r
1626+ din 1. 1683)
Alte imprurnutun 5i dobdnzile aferente (ct 166 + 1685+ rir | i
1666 + 1687 (rd, T04+105}
- lel sl exprimate in l2l, 3 caror dacontare se face i | i
in fienctie de cursul unel valute
- bnvaluta rs | 105
Alte impramutur §i datorii asimilate (ct. 167}, din care: 0 | e 13.651
= walparea concesiunior primite [din o 167) 2t | 107
- valoarea obdigatiunilor verz emise de antitate 12 :' :,,“1’;
Datosii comerciale, vansur primite de la chienti sialte
corturi asimilate, in swme brute (cl 407 + 403 + 404 + 405 + 2 | 1ed 412537
408 +419), din cane;
- datoril comerciale in relatie cu entithiile nesfiliste
nerezidente, avansun pnmite de la chenti neafikati
nerezidentl §i aite conturl asirmilate, in sume brute in relatie | 108
cu neafiliat® nerezidenti (din ct. 401 + dinck 403 = din ct 204
+ diey ct, 405 + din 408 + din ct, $19)
= dator comerciala in relatia cu entitatite afiliste nerezidents,
avansurt primite de bk clienti afiliati nerezidenti si alte contur o
asimilate, in sume brute in relatie cu afiliatii nerezident| (din | 125 | [
et 407 + din ct, 403 + dinct, 404 + din ¢t 405 + din ¢t 408 +
din ¢t 419}
Cratori in beglturd cu personabul si conturi asimilate (ot 421 &
423+ 424 + 476 + 427 + 4381) s | 1 148127
Cratorii in legdturd cu bugetul asigurdrilor sociale sl bugetul
PatLifE (o1 4314436 4 437 #4301 + 447 4 4473 ¢ 4478+ 444 7 | 1N 335653
445+ 2T - 4487 (e 112 1a 115
- datarll knlegatura cu bugeiul asigurasflor sociale
[ct431+437+4381) il R FaoH
- datorii fiscale in legatura cu bugetul statulul
ICTAZ6+14 1 +44 F34+44 3B 54449+ 4] 28 | 113 250652
- fonduri speciale - taxe 5 varsaminte asimilate
[t A4T] ar ) 114 ]
- alte dateril in legatura cu bugeiul statubul (ct 4481 | 13 | 1715
Datoriile entitatii in relatiile cu entitatite afiliate (c 451}, | Vi
din cara: -
- chatordl cu entititl afiliate nerezidante 2 s | 17
[din ct. 45711, din care: N
-y scadenta initiald mai mare de un an i3 | 118
- datari comerciale ¢ u entitagile afiliate nerezidenta e | 18
indiferent de scadenta [din ct. 451) L
Surnie datorake actionarilon f asociatifor (14550, din case; iz | 119 Jll'-'"t Aucht & i
- sume datorate actionarilor / asociatilor persfizice i | 120 |_ il APR. 5011
= sume datorate actionanbor £ asociatidor persjundice i | 121 — |
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Bl cdavari (o, 269 4 453 + 456 4 457 + 4581 4 4861 4 462 &
A72 + 473 + 478 + 509), din care il Bk Pa-Ra i
-decontan privind interesele de participare
decontar cu actionaril fasociatil privindg capitalul, decontarl g | 173 o
i opecati] in pasticipatie
(e 5345845 T 24581 )
-alte datorll in legatura cu perscanele fizice si
persoanele juridice, altele decat datorile in legatura cu i
institutiile publice (frstitutille statulud | 3 ot L g3304) L0
{din ctA824+4661 +din ct47? 2+din ct473)
- sibrventll neraluate la veniturd (din ct. 472) M3 | 125
-warsaminte de efectuat pentru imobilizari financiare | 128
sl mvestitil pe termen sourt (ot 2604509}
= wenituri in avans aferente activelor primite prin wy | 127
transfer de la clienti (ct. 478
Crobdnzl de platit dot. 5186), dincare s | 128
n 4 fa
- elitre nerezidenti a5 | e
Dobinzi de pliatit catre nerezidenti 128k
dif ct. 4518 + din ct. 4538) 7
Veloaraa imprumuurilor primite de k= operatorii | 15
econamicl **7)
Capital subscris varsat [t 1012), din care: 4 | 130
- actiunl cotate 4) 150 131 B77.653 BITTE53
= actiumi necotate 5 157 137
- pdryl soclale 152 | 133
- capetal subseric warsat de nerezident] (din ot 1012 53 | 134
Brevete silicente {din ct.305) 154 | 135
IX. Informatii privind cheltuielile cu Nr.
colaboratorii o 31.12.2079 31.12.2020
L B 1 2
Cheltuiel cu colaboratorl {ct. 821 155 135 93,549 =l
K. Informatii privind bunurile din domeniul :
: a5 M 31.12.2019 31.12.2020
Jublic al statului rd
A B 1 ]
Yaloarea bunurilor din domeniul public al statului aflate in s | 137
jadministrare
Valoarea bunurilos din domeniul pablic al statului aflate in I
COnCEsiune 2 o
Valoarea bunurilor din deemeniul publec al statului inchinate | 158 | 139
XL Informatii privind bunurile din proprietatea -
privati a statului supuse inventarierii cf. OMFP o 31.12.20719 31.12.2020
nr. 668/2014 L
A B 1 F ]
Valoarea contahila netd a bunurilor &) 52 | 140
XIL. Capital social virsat II_.H':_J'- L L L ] ::" 31.12.2019 31.12.2020
T
05 APR 201 | Suma (leil | %7 | Sumafleil | %7
A For Inadunaisn ) plia B Cal Cel.2 Col.3 Col4
ST T ll" . |I .Il"n. "
Capital social véirsat (ct. 107277,
6o | 141 8177653 X 877653 X
(rd. 142 + 145 + 149+ 150+ 151 + 152)
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= detinut de insttutii publice, (rd, 1434744} IaF | 142
- edetinut de institulii puslice de subard, centrals | 143
= clefinut de institufii publice de subord, focals 163 | 144
- deginut de secletdflle ouw capltal de stat, din care: wE | 145
- cu capital integral de stat 165 | 146
- €U capHal majoritar de stat iog | 147
- cu capital minoritar de stat I | 148
- definut de regl autonome 68 | 145
- detinut de socketati cu capital pnvat g | 150 7803843 95043 7.B03.843 0543
- dlefinut de persoane fizioe x| 151 ATTE 457 F3R0 4,57
- cleflrut de alie sntinag) S .
M.
ey Sume (lei)
n B 2019 2020
ML Dividendevirsaminte cuvenite bugetului de stat
sau local, de repartizat din profitul exercifiulul financiar | 183
de citre companiile nationale, societifile nationale,
societatile §i regifle autonome, din care: ]
- gatre institutii pukdice centrale; rr | 154 |
- catre institufii pubdice kocale; rr | 155
- chtre alti sctionan la care statul/unitatile administrativ
[reritarialefinstitutiile publice detin directindirect activni | 156
sau participafilindiferent de ponderes scestons,
o Sume [lei)
i B 2019 20210
XV, Dividende/virsdminte covenlite bugetulul de stat
sau local 5i virate in pericada de raportare din profitul o | 157
reporiat el companlilor najlonele, societdtilor
nationale, societdfilor 5 al regiilor autonome, din care:
- dividendevarsaminte din prafitul exercitiubud financiar
7| 158
ulud precedent, din care virate!
- catre institutii publice centrale 1w | 154
- catre Institutil publice locale ine | 160
- chtre alfi acticna L care statul! anit 5file
adminéstrathi teritoriale Jnstitutiile publice detin o | Vg
direct/indirect actiuni sau participatil Indiferent de
ponderea acestars,
= dividende/vErsiminte din profitul exercifiilor financiare | 162
anteripare anutul precedent, din care virate: |
= catre institufil publice centrale e | 163
= chtre institutii publice kocale iz | 164
= catre alfi acfionar la care statul’ unitagite _ .
administratiy teritoriale finstitutiile publice degin I FPA AR E Lo |
dirpctindirect actiun sau participajilindifarent de e
ponderes acestora 0 b APR. Z8C
XV. Dividende distribuite actionarilor/ Mr. wﬂw oo
asociatilor din profitul reportat rd. e
A B 2019 2020
Dividende distribulbte actionaribor’ aseciatiior in perioada de 54
g aHERrG Ei ol Nan g ) [l 1.308.424 1013.574
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XVI. Repartizari Interimare de dividende Nr. Sume (lei)
potrivit Legii nr. 163/2018 rd, |
A B 2019 2020
- dividendale interimare repartizate & ras ::',",b
XVl Creante preluate prin cesionare de la M. Sume (lei)
{persoane juridice **F4#| rd.
=
A B 3azamas 311232020
Creante preluate prin cestonare de la persoane juridice (13 i | 16k
valoarea nominala), din care:
=creante preluate prin cesicnane de b parsoane |uridice wi | 187
afilizte
Craante preluate prin cesftonare de |3 persaane juridice {la s | 168
cost de achizigie), din care:
-creante preluate prin cesionare de b persoane juridice si
afifiate o
KVIIL Veniturl obtinute din activitati agricole :
bt Wag iy Sume (lel)
sEgxss) rd,
A B .azai9 31122020
Venituri obtinute din activitati agricole | 170
XVIV. Chehuleli privind calamitafile 5i alte eveniments rgg | 1708
similare [ct. 8587, din care: (323}
= 178
- Inesnidatil 43 373
17
SECETA 134 (2]
- aluneckd de iersn b1 II;IE:::
F30 - pag.9
ADMINISTRATOR, INTOCMIT,
Hurmele sl prenumels Mumele §i prengmels
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Lemnatura Calitatea
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Samnatura I" Fi i et |
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rice altesemibun sund cormicdmate wenilue din ackivitiy neegricale
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SITUATIA ACTIVELOR IMOBILIZATE
la data de 31.12.2020
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Cod 40 - el -
Flements de M. Valori brute
imabilizari .
Sold Cresterd Reducer| Seld final
initial Total Dincare (col.5=1+2-3)
dermembrari
i Cagari
A B 1 . 3 ! 5

Limobilizari necorporale

Chettuieli de constituine 5i o1 ¥

cheltuiell de dezvoltare

Alte imokilizar 0z 43335 X 43,336

veansur acoerdate pentri i ¥

irnclilizari necorporale

Active necorporale de explorare 04 ¥

if evaluare a resurselar minerale
TOTAL (rd. 01 la 04) o5 41,335 X 431336
ILimobilizari corporale

Teremurl 06 2,709 055 & 27050055
Constructil o7 15.811.85% I 5.49i6 ] 15827355
Instalatii fehmics si miasing ne 3218365 142054 250547 30,748 1309466
Alte Irstalatil, utllaje sl moblller | 09 23360 6352 Pl |
Investiti imobilizre 10

Active corporale de explarare i R

evaluare a resursalor minerale

Betive Baologice productive 12

imchifizari corparale Inours de

i i 13 18.404 28,9597 16,987 1414
Irvvesnifii imobiliare in curs de 7l
exacutie
Bvansurl acordate pentru 18
Imabifizad corporale
TOTAL (rd. 06 12 15| 168 21,781,700 192,040 287 984 INT48 M TRE065
liLImobilizari flnanckare 17 1034447 ¥ 1.034.4a7
ACTIVE IMOBILEEATE - TOTAL
i 05416417 18 Hmﬂﬂl 292,949 EB?.‘}M{ InT4E 2286185384

JPA Al & 1 -_-
65 AP 2101

=
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SITUATIA AMORTIZARII ACTIVELOR IMOBILIZATE

F4{) - pag. 2

- lel -
Elemente deimobilizarl | M| soldiniar | Amertizare in cursul e | b,
' din evidenta (col.9=6+7-8)
& B & 7 B 2
Idmobilizari necorporale
Cheltuieli de constituine =i 19
chettuieli de dezvoltars
Alta imaobilizari pLi 31980 11606 42,7495
.ﬂ!r;t-h.re rnecorparzle de sxplorane +
si avaluarne a rasurselor minarak:
“CTAL (e 194+20+21] pir ERR i 11606 43795
ILimobilizari corporale
Terenur 13
Constructi 14 3.393.834 598,038 o 2.991.770
Instalatil tehnice sl masinl 15 23290.554 182675 2865317 2227013
Alve instelatil wtilaje si meobidier | 36 9.923 +.027 13,950
Irveestitll imobiliare 1y
Active corparale de ﬂ':tr::h:lriﬁ' 5l 38
evaluare a resurselor minerale
Active biologice preductive 29
TOTAL (rd.23 la 29) 30 4453411 785538 2483017 232732
AMORTIZARI - TOTAL (rd.22 +30)| 31 4734600 ToY 244 246317 5275527
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SITUATIA AJUSTARILOR PENTRU DEPRECIERE

F4( - pag. 3

- el -
Eisrnambe de imosl et v | Seidinitia ”ﬂﬁmﬂ? rﬂu::{f::ﬁmﬂ [tnl.:;:g::l‘t-llf
A B 10 11 12 13
Limobllizarl necorporale
Chedtwied de constifuire s 12
chettuleli de dezvoltare
Alta imobifizari 34
Artiye necorporale de explorara s| 14 |
evaluare a resurselor minerals
TOTAL [rd.32 Ia 34) 35
ILimobilizari corporale
Terenur 36
Canstructii 7
irstalatil tehnbce sl masin i3
Alte instalatii, utilaje si mebiler 9
Imvestitii imoliliare A0 |
brtive corporale de E:q:!hmre sl 41
evaluare a resurselar minerale
Active beologice productive 42
imobilizan comporale incurs de a1 |
execitle
Ivestitil irnabiliare in curs de 7
exarutie |
TOTAL (rd, 36 1a 44) 45
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ADMINISTRATOR, ; INTOCMIT,
Mumeke sl prenumele -I Murmie s prenumebs
ICAM PALINA dm MONEA AUROHA
SN P ‘A'I‘fﬂ
; Calitatea
11-DIRECTOR ECONCMI J,."
Semnatura { .1}-’{11..4‘{

Farmular
VALIDAT

Mr.de inregitrans inorg

ismul profesional

s o
o pinditn i

JPA Andit & Conn

I[_IIE APR. 2171




COMCEREAL. 5.A. TULCEA

SITUATION OF TREASURY CASH FLOWS

(n 315t Decembrie 2020

Financial vear
Item name Previous Current
2019 2028

Treasury flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers T4 455 081 55 498 803
:tf]';icc]lanmus receipts (VAT to recover, sums of medical leave 192 331 20 797
Payments to suppliers, employees, taxes 64 30 503 33012223
Paid interests and exchange rate differences 941 547 711 928
Tax on pmd profil 42 244 327044
Receipts from insurance against earthquakes 0 ]
MNet treasury cash from up-erating activities 9012 518 1 468 407

Treasury cash flows from investment activities

Payments for the purchase of shares ] {
Payments for the purchase of tangible assets 255 328 338 483
Receipts from the sale of tangible assets 0 ]
Eamned interests and exchange rate differences 37 383 7172
Received dividends 182 766 3 055
Met treasury from the investment activities 164 B21 -325 356

Treasury flows from financing activities
Receipts from shares issue 0 0
Receipis from loans 60 013 456 55 902 265
Paid loans TO 175 897 54 862 831
Paid dividends I 308 424 1 011 6GE9
Net treasury from financing activities -11 470 B65 27 745
Met increase of the treasury and treasury equivalents -2 293 526 1170798
g;ﬁu&r x-?,:f treasury equivalents at the beginning of the 1662 553 2 160 027
:‘:::iur}- and treasury equivalents at the end of the finanecial 2 369 027 1519823

Administrator
Ioan Pauna

General Manager
Niculescu Emilian Mihai

Economic manager
Monea Aurora




COMCEREAL 5.A. TULCEA

STATEMENT OF EQUITY CHANGES
on 31" December 2020

= Fon
B N | Balanceon | Increases | Reductions Halance o |
]|
ecembier
Element af equity 01% January 2010
(L] Tutal By Tatal By
Carwhich | T T i Tranfer
0 I = E i 3 5
Subscribed capital B 177653 | i LI i 1] B 177 653
Admamstration patrimaony i i 0 i i ik
Capital preveiumes 0 i a 0 i} )
Besarvis from reassessnsent 16 280771 0 Ll i 0| L6280773
Legal resarves | 635 53] il i i 0 1 A35 531
Staniory of contractual reserves 347 987 il 1l il i 347 0RT
Reserves representing the surplus reahized i il 0 il i 4]
frodn revaluation ressrves
Cither resernag 4 790173 248 354 148 154 ] 5038 527
Ciwn shares i 1] 0 L 0
Earmings related o equity insimimenis i o 0 0 L
Losses related to egquily instmuments a i 0 0 0 0
The result carmed forwand D Balance 0 1216683 [ 12714683 | 1215683 9 218 GB3 3]
Pepresenting the aot C Balance 0 0| il 0 i
distribated profic'loss |
Resull camried forward pro- D Balange 0 L 0| ] 0 0
mcanme fed
the first mboption of 1AS-TAR . Balance 0 L i 1] ] 1]
25
Result brought forward arising | 1 Batance i 0 L 4] i 0
from the correction of I C Balance
accounting ermors amnd from 43 244 i 0 43 744 43 244 0
revaluation reserves
Result broaght forwarnd from I Batanos 0 ] 0 0 Lt
the transition o the i
application of the Accouniing
Regulation in accordance with | © Balanos i 0 0 i i 0
the 4™ Directive of the EEC
Profitor losg of the fimancial [ Balunie 0 o 0 0 0 0
) C Balance 1 Z1E 683 M5 985 205 OR3 | 218 683 1218 6E3 205 983
Profit [ Balance i 1] L] 1 L] i
distribution C Balance 0 1 0 0 4 0
TOTAL Eguities 32404 044 | -TRd 346 -Tad 346 43 244 43244 | 3] 6EA 454
Adminlstraier, General Mansger Econvmie Munager
loan Pauna Miculescu Emilian Mihai Monea Aurora



COMCEREAL 5.A. TULCEA

INFORMATION ON THE STATEMENT OF EQUITY CHANGES

The equity wins influenced as Follows:

—lei-
f Element nl capitnlului propria e 2o
Subscribed capital 177 B33 | B177 B3
Administration patrimonsy 0 0
Capiial premurmns L 0
Rezervas [rom redssessmend 16 280 773 | 16 2BO 773
Legal reservies 1636531 | 1635631
Resorvay for own shanes 47 987 347 98T
Reserves representing the surplies realized from revalustion reserves 0 a
Chhes pegerves 47a0173 | 5038527
Chwn shiores 0 O
Earmimgs related o eguity imstruments 0 H
Losses related o cquity ixstrumend 0 H
D Balance 0| ]
Reported resalt

Fpored sl C Balance 0 o
Result carrizd forward pro-meoome from 1 Bt o 0
the first adoption of TAS-1AS5 19 C Halance o 0
I Balonce 0 0
Result brought forward arizing from the correction of founding emmors = Ralnnee — =
Result brought forward from (he transition o the application of the 1) Balance o Q
Accounting Rejulation in accordance with the 4™ Directive of the EEC C Balance 0 0
I ; o D Balance 0 0
Frofitor less of the Tinancial year € Balance | 1 218 683 prermp
£ diedhat D Balance 7415 0
Profit distribution C Balance 0 0

TOTAL Equirices 4% 044 | 31 686 454

Administrator, General Mannger Economic Monnger
Toun Pauna Hiculescu Emilian Mihal Monea Aurora




COMPANY COMCEREAL 8.A. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 31" December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RONY, unless otherwise specified)

The individual financial statements of the Company Comcereal SA Tulcea for the
financial vear ended on 317 December 2020 were prepared in accordance with the Accounting
Law no. 32/1991 republished in 2008, Onder of the Public Finances Ministry no. 18022014 for
the approval of the accounting regulations in compliance with the European directives and with
the requirements of Order of the Public Finances Ministry 58/14.01.2021 — on the main aspects
regarding the preparation and submission of the annual financial statements and of the annual
secounting reports of the economic operators to the termtorial units of the Ministry of Public
Finances.

These financial statements reter only to Comcereal SA.

NOTE I: Information about the company

The Company COMCEREAL §4 TULCEA i a joint stock company, with private
share capital, which operates in the field of agriculture and food industry.

The main activity of the company is the represented by the conditioning, storage and
selling of agricultural products, With a twotal storage capacity of approximately 137,000 tons of
cergals and a capacity authorized by the Directorate for Agriculture and Rural Development
Tulcea of 111,100 tons, the company occupies one of the leading places in Tulcea district in this
domain, having the capacity to receive up to 23 of the agricultural production of the disirict.

The company Comeereal was established by the Government Decision 1054719095,
upon the reorganization of the former Romeereral — Autonomous Administration of Tulcea
and its transformation into two economic agents, namely the Company Comeereal S.A.
Tulcea and the MNational Agency for Agricultural Products — Awtonomous Administration
Tuleea,

The Company COMCEREAL S5A TULCEA, has legal office in Jsaccer street. no, 73,
3 A, Tuleea, Unigue Registration Code: RO 8392201 registration no. in the Trade Register of
Tulcea J367165/1996, LEI Code 254WHIR1D1ANIUY3Q040

The company operates at its main headquarters and at the following work points:

1. Company Comeereal 34 Tuleea — Entity without fegal personality — Reception Base of
Mihail Kogalniceanu — M. Kogainiceanu Comeume, Tulcea Disiric, Fiscal Regisiration
Code: 24302014;

2. Company Comcereal 54 Tuwlcea — Entity without legal personality — Sile of Baia — Baia
Commune, Tulcea District, Fiseal Registration Code: 24302057;

3, Compary Comcereal 84 Twleea — Entity without legal personality — Reception Base of
Casimeea — Casimoea Commune, Tuwleea District, Fiscal Registration Code: 243020653,

4. Company Comeereal §S4 Tulcea — Ensity without legal personality — Reception Base of
Macin - Petru Rares Street, No, |, Macin Town, Tuleea District, Fizeal Regiviration
Code: 24302030,

5. Company Comeeread SA Tuleea — Entity withowut legal personality — Reception Base of
Isaccea — Isaccea Town, Tulcea Tulcea:

6. Company Comecereal SA Tulcea — Entity without legal personality — Reception Base of
Peceneaga - Pecemeaga Commune, Tuwleea District, Fiscal Regisiration Code:
HMI02048;



COMPANY COMCEREAL 8.4. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 31* December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RONT, unless otherwise specified)

7. Company Comeereal SA Twfoea — Entity without legal personality = Reception Base of
Mahmudia — Mahmudiac Commune, Tulcea Districs, Fiscal Regisiration Code: 24302006,

& Company Comceren! 84 Tulcea — Eneity withowt {egal personaline — Mohile Base of
Topolog — Tapolog Village, Topolog Commune, Twleea Disirict;

Q. Company Comcereal S84 Twlcea — Entity withowt legal personality — Mobile Base of
Horia — Horvia Village, Horla Commune, Tulcea District

The Company has a share capital of 8,177,652.50 RON divided into 3,271,061 shares
with a nominal value of 2.5 ROMN,

The censolidated annual financial statements are prepared by Argus SA Constanta.

The shares of the company are traded under the alternative trading system administeraed
by the Bucharest Stock Exchange - AeRo, the trading symbol being CTUL.,

NOTA 2: Accounting principles, policies and methods

The items presented in the annual financial statements are assessed in accordance with

the following general accounting principles, in accordance with accrual accounting. Thesc
principles are presented below.

!, Principle of continuity of business — a principle that assumes that the unit normally continues
its operation without going into a state of liquidation or significant reduction of the activity.

2. The principle of permanence of the methods — a principle which presupposes the continuity of
applying the same rules and nonns regarding the evaluation, the recording in the accounting and
the presentation of the patrimonial elements and of the results, ensuring the comparability in time
of the accounting information.

3. The principle of prudence — & pnnciple which requires that the assessment be made on a
prudent basis and in particular;

o only the profit made at the balance sheet date may be included;

* account must be taken of all debts incurred during the current financial year or during a
previous vear, even if they become apparent only between the balance sheet date and the
date of its drawing,

» account must be taken of all foreseeable liabilities and potential losses incurred duning the
current financial year or during a previous vear even if they become apparent only between
the balance sheet date and the date of its drawing;

e all adjustments due to impammment must be taken into account, even if the result of the
financial year is loss or profit.

4. The principle of independence of the vear. Account must be taken of all revenue and

expenditure comesponding to the financial year, regardless of the date of payment of the sums or
expenditures.

5. The principle of separate valuaiion of asseis and labilities. According to this principle, the
components of the asset or liability items must be valued separately.

| g ]



COMPANY COMCEREAL 8.4, TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial vear ended on 31" December 2020

6, The principle of intangibifity. The opening balance for each financial vear must correspond o
the closing balance sheet of the previous vear,

7. Principle of non-compensation. Any compensation between the assets and debis elements or
between items of income and expense is prohibited. Possible compensations between the
receivables and debts of the entity to the same economic agent may be made, subject to legal
provisions compliance, only after the income and expenses have been recorded in the accounts at
full value,

8 Principle of prevalence of the econennic aver the legal. The disclosure of the values from the
items in the balance sheet and the profit and loss account i3 made taking into s&ccount the
economic sebstance of the transaction or of the reported operation and not only by their legal
form.

4 Principle of sienificance threshold. Any ttem that has a significant valwe should be presented
separately in the financial statements. The balance items and profit and loss account items that
are preceded by Arabic figures can be combined (F

» these represent an insignificant amount;
s and such a combination offers a higher level of clanty, provided that the items so
combined are presented separately in the explanatory notes.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented i accordance with the principles
outlined sbove.

The company has prepared the annual financial statements based on the resulting verification
balance based on the above-mentioned regulations.

These financial statements reter only to Comeercal SA.

The main accounting policies adopted in the prepamation of these financial statements are
presented below,

A. The basics of the financial statemenis preparation
(1) General information
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:
- the Order of the Public Finances Minister of Romania 18022014 regarding the approval
of the accounting regulations in compliance with the European directives;
- the Accounting Law no. 821991 republished and amended.
- Order of the Public Finances Minister 58/14.01.2021 — on the main aspects related to
the preparation and submission of the annual fnancial stalements and the annoal a::mu.t‘:ting_
reports of the economic operators to the territorial units of the Ministry of Public Finances.

{2) Continuity of the activity

These financial statements have been prepared based on the activity continuity principle,
which implies that the Company will continue its activity in the foreseeable future. In order o
assess the applicability of this assumption, the management examines the projections referring to
future cash inflows.

Based on these analyses, the management believes that the Company will be able to continus
its activity in the foresecable future and therefore applying the activity continuity principle in the
preparation of the financial statements 15 justified.

3



COMPANY COMCEREAL 8.A. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial vear ended on 31" December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RON", undess otherwise specified)

B. The conversion of transactions in foreign currency

1) Currency of the measurement of financial statements
The financial statements are presented in RON, which is also the Company’s measurement
CUTTEnCy.
The rounding of amounts was made to plus or minus 1 lew, after the first two decimals.
The financial statements include:
Balance shect
Profit and loss account
Situation of changes in equity
Situation of cash flows
Explanatory notes to the annual financial statements.

" & 8 & @

2) The transactions and balances in foreign currency

The transactions of the Company in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates
communicated by the National Bank of Romania (“BNR") for the transaction date. The foreign
currency balances are comverted into lel at the exchange rates communicated by the BNR for
31.12.2020, respectively 1 curo = 4,8694 lei, 1 usd = 31,9660 lei. The gmns and losses arising
from the settlement of the transactions in a foreign currency and from the conversion of assets
and mometary lizbilities expressed in foreign currency are recognized info the account of prodit
and loss, within the financial result.

C. Intangible assets

(1) Cost

1.1 Goodwill
The goodwill represents the difference between the cost of a purchase and the value
at the date of the transaction of the share held by the Company in the
subsidigry/purchased associate enterprise, at the acquisition date, The goodwill 13
amortized over a five-year period,

1.2 Computer programs
The software and computer licenses are recorded at the cost of acquisition and
amortized on a period of maximum 3 vears.

1.3 Research and development expenses
The research expenses are recorded in the profit and loss account when they are
mcurmed. The expenditure afferent to the development programs (related to the
design and testing of new or improved products) are recogmzed as intangible assets
when it is probable that the project will be successfully launched taking into account
the commercial and technical feasibility and the cost can be measured rehably. The
development expenses that do not meet the above critena are recorded at expenses
when they cccur, The development expenditures that have been recorded s expenses
arc not capitalized in later periods.

1.4 her intangible asyets
The patents, trademarks and other intangible assets are recognized at acquisition cost,
The intangible assets are not re-valued.

(2} Amortization
2.0 Goodwill



COMPANY COMCEREAL §.4. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 31* December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RON", unless otherwise specified)

The goodwill is amortized over a five-year perod.

2.2 Computer programs

The expenditures for the development of capitalized sofiware programs are smortized
using the straight-line method on a period of maximum 5 vears.

2.3 Development expenses

The capitalized development expenditures are amortized on a straight-line basis starting
with the date of initiation of the product’s commercial production for as long as the
product penerates economic benefits but not for more than five years.

2.4 Other intangilile assets

The patents, trademarks and other imtangible assets are amortized vsing the straight-fine
method over their useful lives, but not for more than 20 vears. The licenses afferent to the
computer software usage nghts are amortized on a period of 3 years.

{3) Profit/(loss) from the sale of some entities
The gain or loss resulting from the sale of an entity includes the sccounting value of the
goodwill afferent to the sold entity,

D. Tangibhle assets

(1) Cost/measurement
The tangible assets are initially measured at the acquisition cost. The Company opted for
the treatment of the periodic assessment of the tangible asscts. A depreciation test of
tangible assets is made annually according to which the decision to re-evaluate a group or
the entire estate is made. The last re-evaluation was on 31 December 2020.
The fixed asset maintenance and repairs are recorded as expenses when they occur, and
the improvements to the assets that increase their value or their useful lives are
capitalized. The sigmficant upgrades are capitalized only if they extend the life of the
pssel or ggnificantly increase the ability to generate future economic benefits.
The fixed assets that are unaffected by the nature of the inventory items, including the
utensils and tools, are recorded as expenses at the acquisition date and are not included in
the accounting value of the tangible assets.

(2} Amortization
The amortization is calculated at the assessed value using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful life of the assets, as tollows:

Assets __Years
Constructions 10 - 40
Technical installations and machinery 2= 12
Other mnstallations, machinery and furniture 3 =15

The land 15 ot amorhzed becaase 1t 15 considered to have an indefinite life,

{3) Sale/disposal of the tangible assets
The tangible assets that are dispesed or sold are removed from the balance sheet together

with the amortization appropriately accumulated. Any profit or loss resulting from such
an operation 15 mcleded i the cumrent profit and 1oss account.



COMPANY COMCEREAL S A. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 31" December 2020

{4} The costs of indebtedness

F.

H

The expenses on interests afferent to all loans are recorded as expenses when they are
incurred, except for the loans for the acquisition or construction of tangible assets, which
are included in the value of the assets until the date of entry into service of the respective
tangible assets. The subseguent interests are recorded as expenses.

. Financial assets

The participation tifles are classified as held until the non-defined matarity, not being
available for sale in order to meet the company s temporary liquidity needs.

Stocks

The stocks are recorded at the date of entry into the company at acquisition cost, Un
exiting from the accounting. the cost is determined based on the specific identification
method. The cost of services and the ongoing execution includes the matenials, manpower
and afferent indirect production expenses. Where necessary, provisions are made for
slow-moving stocks (older than 3 vears from the date of acquisition) physically or
morally used in accordance with the accounting policies adopted in COMCEREAL SA.
The net realizable value is estimated on the basis of the sale price less the finalization
costs and the expenses for the sale.

. Commercial receivables

3

The commercial receivables are recorded at the inveiced amount less the provision for
the deprecistion of these receivables. The provision for the depreciation of the
commercial receivables is constituted if there is objective evidence that the Company will
not be in a position to collect all the amounts at the initial terms. The provision is
calculated as the difference between the value recorded in the sccounting amd the
recoverable value, which is the present value of the future cash flows using the actusl
current rate afferent to a similar financial instrument.

Short-term financial investment
These include the short-term deposits with banks and other shori-term high liguidity-
providing investments as well as treasury bills,

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and the cash equivalents are recorded in the balance sheet at costs. For the cash
flow situation, its cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank sccounts, short-
term financial investments, freasury advances and net of overdraft, In the balance sheet,
the overdraft is shown in debts to he paid over a period of one vear - amounts due to
credit institutions.

. Share capital

The ordinary shares are classified in own equity.

Dividends
The dividends afferent to ordinary shares are recognized in equity during the peried in
which they are declared,



COMPANY COMCEREAL 5.4, TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 31" December 2020
{all amrounts are expressed in “RON", unless otherwixe specified)

L. Loans

The short-term and long-term loans are initially recorded at the amount received. net of
transaction costs.

The short-term portion of the long-term loans is classified in *Liabilities payable within a
one-year period” and included with the interest accrued at the balance sheet date in
“Amounts owed to credit institutions™ in the current debts.

M. The accounting of leasing contract in which the Company is a lessee
(1) Financial leasing contracts

The leasing contracts for tangible assets in which the Company assumes all the risks and
bencfifs related to the property are classified as finance leasing contracts. The financial
leases are capitalized ot the estimeted current value of payments, Each pavment 15 split
between the capital element and interest element to obtain a constant interest rate during
the reimbursement. The amounts payable are included in shont or long term debts. The
interest element is recorded into the profit and loss account over the life of the contract.
The assets held under financial leasing contracts are capitalized and amortized over their
useful lives.

{2) Operational leasing contract

0.

The leasing contracts in which a significant portion of the nsks and benefits associated to
the property are refained by the lessor, are classified as operating leasing contracts. The
pavments made under such a contract (net of any facilites pranted by the lessor) are
recognized in profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the life of the contract.

Commercial pavahles

The short-term commercial payables (maturing in less than 12 months) are recorded at
the nominal value, approximating the tair value of the amounts to be paid for the goods or
services received.

Affiliated parties
The parties are considered affiliated it one party, either through ownership, contractual
rights, family relationships or relationships of other nature, has the possibility to directly
control or significantly influence the other party, Entities that meet the conditions set out
in Sub-chapter 1, Section [{2) paragraph 12 of the Accounting Regulations, an integral
part of Oeder of the Miﬂ'lﬁi‘tr}-' of Public Finances 180272014 are considered affilated
entities. The affiliated parties of Comcereal SA!

- ARGUS SA CONSTANTA

- CEREAL PREST SRL

Provisions for risks and expenses

The provisions for risks and expenses are recognized when the Company has a legal or
implicit obligation arising from past events when for the settlement of the obligation an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is required and when a credible
estimate of the value of the obligation can be made,

. Employees® benefits

Pensions and other benefits after retirement
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for the financial year ended on 31% December 2020

LY

{ull amovinis are expressed in "RON', inlesr ofherwise specified)

T.

In the normal course of the activity, the Company makes payments to the social
insurances budgets, to special state funds for its emplovees at the statutory rates, All the
employees of the Company are members of the Romanian state pension plan. These costs
are recognized in the profit and loss account together with the recognition of salaries. The
company does not operate any other pension or retirement benefits plan and therefore has
no other obligations regarding the pensions.

Taxation
The Company records the current profit tax based on the taxable profit in the fiscal
reports. according to the relevant Romanian legmslation.

Recognition of revenue

The revenues refer to the sold goods and to the provided services. The revenues from
the sale of goods are recognized when the Company transferred to the buyer the
principal nisks and benecfits associated to the ownership of the goods, The revenucs
from royalties and rents are recognized on the basis of the engagement accounting
principles according to the economic substance of the related contracts. The dividends

are recognized as revenues when the legal night to receive these amounts is
established.

Turnover
The tumover represents the invoiced amounts and amounts to be invoiced. net of VAT
and commercial rebates, for delivered goods or services rendered to third parties.

l. Debts and contingent assets

The Company has no debts and contingent assets gt 31" December 2020.

Events after the balance sheet date

For the preparation of the financial statements, the management of the company makes
certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities
at the halance sheet date as well as the income and expenses of the reported period.
Actual results may differ from what you expected,

. Estimates
The effect of the change 1n accounting estimates is calcufated in advance and is included
in the determination of the related net result:
- the period in which the change occurred, 1t it 15 the only affected penod;
= the period of change and subsequent periods, if change affects all.

. Mansgement of the financial risk

Financial risk factors

Due to the nature of the activities it performs, the Company is exposed 1o various risks
including: the credit risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and liguidity risk, The
manggement aims o reduce the polential adverse effects associaled with these nsk
factors on the Company 'z financial performance.
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L. The credit risk
The Company 15 subject to credit nsk due to its commercial recervables and to other
tvpes of receivables, The references on the clients’ creditworthiness are normally
obtained for all new customers, the receivables due date is carefully monitored, and the
amounts due after the deadline are promptly tracked.

2. Foreign exchange risk
The company may he exposed to the exchange rate fluctuations through the debt
generated by any foreign currency loans or commercial debis. Due to the high associated
costs, the Company’s policy is not to use financial instruments to mitigate this nsk,

3. The interest rate risk
The Company's cash flows are affected by the rate fluctuations of the interests,

4. The lquidity risk

The prudent management of the hguidity rigk involves maintaining sufficient cash and
available credit lines.

NOTE 3: Fixed assets

- Ron-
Gross value
Balance on Balance on
Name of the fixed asset element  31.12.2019 Inereases | Discounts Jaz22o0

i) 1 4 3 4
I, Intangible fixed assets
Other intangible fixed assets
Total intan fixed assets

43,336

43,336
43,336

43,336

Il Tangible assets i

Lands and land developments 2,709,099 2,709,099
Constructions 15,811,850 15,496 15,827,355
Technological equipment and

machines 3.218.369 242,084 250,997 3,200 466
Other installations, equipment,

furniture 23,369 6,362 29,731
Fixed assets in progress | 8,404 28,997 36,987 10,414

Total tangible assets

21,781,100

21,786,065

| IT] Financial fived assets 7 — S ——

GENERAL TOTAL

22,858,923

192,949

187,984 |

22,863,888




COMPANY COMCEREAL 5.A. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the finaneial vear ended on 31" December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RON", unless otherwise specified)

Ron -
Value adjustment
{(amortizations and adjustments for the depreciation or
. loss of value) o
Balance on Balance on
Name of the fixed asset element]  31.12.2019 | Increases | Discounts | 31.12.2020
0 | 2 3 4
L{Intangible fixed assets
| Other intangible fixed assets 3,188 11,606 42,795
Total lutlmﬁhh fixed assets JIiIE‘!' 1 liﬁl]ﬁ 42,795
11| Tangible assets
Lands and land developments
Constructions 1392 834 598936 2091770
Technalogical equipment and
machines 27200654  1R2.67S 246,317 2237012
Other installations, equipment,
fumiture 0.923% 4 027 13,950
Taotal tangible assets 4,693.411 785,638 246,317 132,732

GENERAL TOTAL 4,724,600 T97.244 246317 5,275,527

At 317 December 2020, the net accounting value of the intangible assets is of 541 ron,
representing mainly software licenses. These intangible assets are amortized over & three-vear
period starting the month following the commisstoning by using the siraight-line amortization
method.

The last evaluation of the lands, buildings and special constructions belonging to the
company was made on 31122014 by an independent evaluator member of ANEVAR (TN:
Mational Assoctation of Authorized Evaluators In Romania), the values set for each asset taking into
account their degree of wear and tear. The straight-line method was used as the amortization
method, the amortizable value of the tangible assets being allocated systematically over the
useful life of the asset, there being no special situation requiring chanpe the amortization method.

The tangible assets under execution in the amount of 10,414 lei represent works for the
expansion of the storage capacity in the Reception Base of Macin, pot finalized at 31.12.2020.

The financial assets consist of 103,360 shares held at Cereal Prest SRL, with a total valoe
of 1,033,600 ron and other fixed receivables amounting to 887 ron,

NOTE 4: Stocks

On 31" December 2020 the stock situation is as follows: -Ron -
Rava wsterials, matesials and inventory ohjects [chiss 3 - 30) 5 58% 31,593
Prodisction in progness L] 1.047 5924
Fuwishod proucss sod poods (3 - 37) 5657 150 a4 T B8

Advances for purchases of stocks (4091 & 492 513 11,918 557
Total stocks
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COMPANY COMCEREAL 5.4, TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial vear ended on 31" December 2020
(all amounts are expressed in “RON", unless otherwise specified)

Comgeereal SA does not have hard-to-sell stocks, has not recorded perishables and did not
constitute adjustments on 31.12.2020,

Comeereal 8A Tuleea carmied out in 2020 the patnmony inventory according to the Order
286172009, Order of the Ministry of Finances 1802/2014 and Law 82/1991,

NOTE 5: The receivables situation

i
Total, of whicl: T

mternal clents (cat 4111) 7685 162 i
Aivamees for services provision (cat, 4{%2) 23177 0
Clients invoiees to be drawn up {cat. 318) -13 308 0
Mon-payable VAT fon receipt) 0 0
Varicas debiors {cat. 461) 137 Bhb {
Seitlements firoam ongoing operations 0 1]
VAT e be recovered A0 521 1

i =]+5-3

i 1 3
Adjusiments For depreciation of receivables (cat, 14934 727 151 301 2302083
41 )

Following the inventory of receivables it was found that there was o risk of non-payment
for two of the clients in the balance at the end of 2020: Rienergy E.5.Co SRL, Exprestardiva
SRL, and Petramo Speed SREL for which & provision in the amount of 518 667 lel was
established. The provisions for unsecured clients of the balance come from previous vears and
amount to 1 934 Y27 lei. Most of this value, [,523,725 lei, represents the debts of the debtor
Cereal Impex SEL.

The receipt of the adjustments constitutes for the uncertain, bad-payer clients or clients in
htigation was made in accordance with the rules in force for the amounts registered in the

Previous yeurs,

NOTE 6: Available money

Bank acoounis 2 350 494 T 1520 528
Cash in hand 14 185 16 UI

3 093

“Other values” regresents the sum of fuel vouchers unused wntil 31.12.2020.
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COMPANY COMUEREAL 8.4. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 317 December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RON", unless otherwise specified)

NOTE 7: Situation of Debts

: “n-

Total, of which:
internal supplhiers (cal 401} aus fff
suppl'i.ers mvedces b ammive [cat, 400 5 ETL 1] ]
due salories (eat, 421} R4 306
Siaff-due matured aids (cat. 423) 0
other debis repanding the s1aff [car. 42E1) &3 815 ] i
deductions from salaries {cat.
427431 436447) : fleas u 5
tax of profil (car 441) 3T 191 ] i
tax on salaries (cat. 444) [T 030 il il
ather mxes (ot 446) L] ] i
other debis to the state budget (cal. 2481} f
WAT to be paid (cat, 4423) 0 i ]
padvances not used by mandate contract (cat,
419) b
:I';;}ﬂus creditors and dividends (cat. 462, 175 473 0 0
Creditm, leases (cat. 1621,167, 5191) 15820 225 i i

In 2020, the company involved a shurt term Iuﬂn rmrﬂ]vmg limit in the smount of
20,000,000 lea, sl on 31.12.2020 the amount to be rembursed from thas limit was of
15,806,574 rod.

NOTE 8: Incomes in advance

The moeomes in advance in the amount of 11,617 ron (3 1™ December 2019: 14,188 ron).
represenis rent in advance for ongoing contracts.
The amount for investments of 252,951 RON (317 December 2019: 269,695 ron), to be resumed
at incomes in a peried of more than one year, represents the value of some fixed assets reinstated
in operation upon the re-assessment made in 2001,

NOTE 9: Provisions for risks and expenses

o i ] 1 &= [433
Provisions for employees” benefils 1] 0 0 i
Provisions for aes 4] ] 1] ]
Other provisions 21 631 3345 21 631 3 345
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COMPANY COMCEREAL 85.A. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial vear ended on 31" December 2020
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“Other provisions” represent amount constituted for days of rest leave not performed on
31.12:2020 in the amount of 3 345 lei

NOTE 10: Equities and reserves

The equity capital of the company in value of 31 686 434 ron, registered on 31%
Diecember 2020 a decresse compared to the end of the previous year, when the value was of
32,494,044 ron, in the amount of 807 390 ron, as presented in the “Statement of equity changes
on 31.12.20207, annex to the balance sheet,

Comeereal SA Tulcea operates as 8 joint-stock company, according to Law 31/199¢.

The Company has not issued participation certificates, bonds or other securities other
than its own common shares.

The subscribed and paid-up share capttal amounts to &,177.652.50 let on 31.02.2020, the
equivalent of 3,271.061 shares with a nominal value of 2.5 ron/share, values unchanged
compared to the end of the previous year,

All shares are comimon, they were subscribed and are fully paid on 31.12.2020.

The shares give the same voting right and are traded on the securities market Bucharest
Stock Exchange — AeRO,

The sharehalding structure on 31® December 2019 and 2020 is as follows:

Argus SA Constnia 3119 210 | 7798 025.00 | 95.3577 | 3119 210 | 7 798 025.00 [95.3577
Cither shareholdess — natral and legal

LHCT 540

151 851 379 62T 50 151 851 | 379 A27T.50 | 46423

NOTE 11: Distribution of profit

On 31" December 2020, the Company recorded a net profit of 205 983,15 ron.

| NET PROFIT TO BE DISTRIBUTED: 1 218 683,25 205 9R3, 15
| legal reserve 0.00 .00
covering of the accounting Ioss (.00 0o
divadends, ete. 1,013.573.83 .00
other reserves at the disposal of the company 205 10s.4 0.00
NON-DISTRIBUTED PROFIT: (00 25 083,15

Comcereal SA Tulcea regmstered in 2020 & net accounting profit in the amount of
205 983,15 ron, which will be distributed according to the Decision of the Shareholders’
Ordinary General Meeting, The administrator of the company proposes that the entire value of
205 983,15 lei be distributed to the reserve fund available to the company.

NOTE 12: Analysis of the result from exploitation



COMPANY COMCEREAL 5.4. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 31" December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RON", unless otherwise specified)

The result from exploitation of the year is realized in the current vear in operating profit

it value of 1 147 931 ron.

= TI¥[1 =

& | I

3

| Production of the vear

72 786 557

54 468 820

1. | 1] Met turmowvar

TE 9451211

33 152 525

1.2 Varmton of sincks

=f 158 &34

|

I 316 265

« |21 F_xpenmﬁ:rﬂumaiﬂaﬂivity 3 940 008 40 385 315
2.2 Expenaes for the auxiliary activities 2 B31 398 2343078
2.3 Indirect tion & &5 b1 e 612 2R
4. | Selling expenses {0 0
5.  General administration expenses 1 205 80 1 070 220
Adjustments regarding the current assets and 304 413 -500 382

6. | provisions
7. | Other revenues from exploitation K97 083 775 286
Other expenses Mrom exploitations 342 098 305 052

Based on the results obtained in 2020, compared to the same period of 2019 was the more
advantageons commmercial margin obtained at a turnover of the much lower commaodity fund in
2020 compared to 2019, this was possible due to the increzse of the accessed credit limit, which
allowed the sale at the spot, which ensures a very small commercial margin, in order to
capitalize, to be smaller.

The prolenged drought and the extreme weather phenoinena caused a drastic decrease of
the average cereal and oilseed production per hectare in the south-east area of the country and
implicitly the decrease of the volume of purchases/sales of agncultural products which generated
8 decrcase of the income as well as of expenditure on goods. The operating expenses are
influenced in an increasing way by the imposed wage increases as well as by increases in energy
prices, fuels, all external benefits as well as local laxes and duties, for the whole year, however,
the operating expenses show a decrease, this not being proportional to the much reduced
acquisition activity in 2020 compared to 2019,

NOTE 13: Expenses and information with staff, administrators and executive
managemeni

In 2020, Comeereal SA Tulcea paid the following net indemnities to the members of the
administrative bodies and the executive management: - romn -

Administrative and executive management indemnities

252 942 | 270 718

No advances or credits were pranted to the adminisirators of the company or 1o the
directors of the company.

At the end of the financial year there are no future guarantees or obligations assumed by
the Company on behalf of the directors or directors.

Number of emplovees
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COMPANY COMCEREAL 5.4. TULCEA

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial vear ended on 31% December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RON, unless otherwise specified)

The average number and the actual number of employvees in the year 2020 and 2019 15 the

l'nllnwinii

Workers li] i
Technical. ecomomic and admintstostive stafl 20 17
Total R 47

Actunl number of emplovees nt the end of the financizl vear S0 dd
Mlen 4 a7

Wiomen 15 12

Information on staff expenses

The expenses on salanes and related taxes recorded in the year 2019 a5 well a5 n 2020
are as follows:
= il -

Al aroa Tdsinitiion Talia 1 the exarsis 3250 490 2293 225

Expenses on insurances and social protection 87 538 §0 189

Administrators and excecutive management

Comeereal 5A has a unitary management system, the statutory manapement bodies
being:

- General Meeting of Sharcholders:
- Bole Administrator;
General Manager.

The General Mecting of Shareholders represents the entire shareholders of the company,
its competencies being those provided by the law and by the constitutive act.

According to the Constitutive Act. the company is managed by the Sole Administrator in
the person of Mr. loan Pauna, for a four-year mandate, being re-clectable. In this sense, a
mandate contract was concluded with him,

The executive management is provided by a peneral manager in the person of Mr.
Miculescu Emilian Mihai, the relations being based on a mandate contract, seconded by an
economic director in the person of Mrs. Monea Aurora and a technical manager in the person of
Mr, Cemat Corneliu, with whom the company has labour relations based on individual labour
comiracts.

NOTE 14: Information on the transactions with affiliated parties

At 21122020, the majority shareholding of Comecereal SA Tulcea, respectively
95.3577%. 13 held by the company Argus 5A Constania.

Comcereal SA Tuolcea holds as of 31.12.2020 shares of 100" of the share capital of the
Company Cereal Prest SRL, worth 1,033,600 ron, for which no value adjustments have been
registered,

In 2020, compared to yvear 2019, Comcereal 8A carried out the following transactions with
affiliated parties including VAT:

L5
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended on 31" December 2020

fall amonnts are expressed in “RON", unfess otherwise specified)

= FOR =

Sale of goods 24 247 598
Goods sales sdjusiments from the previous vear -521 GA9
Bale of services 1 704 616
Purchases of goods 773050
Advance for purchases of goods 254 490
Purchases of services 1
Assignment of assigned recemvables i
Assignment of faken-over receivables 0
Paid dividends 1.247 654
Dividends 1o cash in a
Cashed-in dividends ]

20 608 T13
0

213 608
o

- 254 450
464 121
1)

]

966 953
0

4]

331 5353
i

258
102 957
4441 ()0
fl

oOoooo o

Coanmiercial recervahles 1498 314 194 [%T 570 NS IO 5549
Other receivahles {1 L] 112 i SO0 i
Commercinl debis 1] 0 i
Cither debis 1] i it
NOTE 15: Analysis of the main economical-financial indicators
Current aesets [ A) I 6E5 315 I 23R 5
Current dehi= (B 16 020 QRG 16 862 009
A= i wimber of faes 192 .85
Current nssets [4) a0 &85 315 3] FXE A
Stocks |B) 15 163452 1947910
Current dehis () Ly (20 80 16 S&F D9
(| - it arnwender of Wnes 057 o
Borrowed capital (A} 0 f
Commiticd capital (B) 32 THS 370 31 942 750
AR if iz mof calcwu 0 [
Profit before paviment of the interest and the profit as (A) 2554370 1 140 141
Interest expenses (B) 043 563 RO 067
AR — ln mumiber of dime e o i % mer calendlited) 2T A ES
Average siock (A) 18 847 361 17321 186
Cost of =ales (B) G4 514 641 45 981 7RO
(ABFIGF — i mmber o HRER 13749
Cost of sakes (4) &4 314 641 45 981 7RO
Average siock (B) 18 847 361 17321 186
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial vear ended on 31" December 2020
{all amounts are expressed in “RON", unless atherwise specified)

{AR) — in mumber of iimes .42 L]
Clients” averape balance {A) 12 827 585 @013 230
Met nimover (B} TE 045 211 53 152525
*36.5 — in numiker o S0.37 Ba.&7
Suppliers’ average bhalamee [A) 729 233 405 3946
Cost of sales (B) i 514 641 45 981 TE(
AR *385 — in nunaber 442 2.03
Met mrnever (A) TR G445 211 53 152 525
Fized pasets (B) 18 134 323 I'7 588 361
(AR = in munber of fmaes 4.35 Laz
et urmover (A TRO45 211 53 157 515
Tonal asseis (B) 4f 815 638 45 816 3T
- i isamher of Hoes 1.62 109
Profit before the payment of the interest ond of the profit 2 554 501 11450 141
tax (A}
Total assets minus current debis (B) 33 785370 31942 T3
AR v, B 2% i .08 i fhd
Cirpes profit from exploiaion (A) 2425173 1147 931
Mt e E) THO45 311 53 152 525
A/} = in pereentages 1oty L16%

NOTE 16: Other information

1. Method for converting the assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses from currencies

into local currency

Description in Note 2, point B, "Conversion of transactions in foreign currency™,

2. Information related to the tax on profit

The reconciliation between the vesult of the year and the fiscal result as presented in the

{ax refum: = Pl =
Cross result 1 218 683 203 983
Total elements sindlar o the incomes 378 200 335 652
Totn] elerments similar io the expensecy i 0
Tota] deductions ERE 488 797 244
Toal af non-taxable incormes 312 4356 172932
Todal of non-deduciible expenses 2042 452 1749 214
Total of txahlbe income 2 639 09] 1 520673
Tax on caleulated profil 422 255 241 308
Amounts represeating sponsorship 30 Q0 0
Costof purchasing electromie fiscal cagh registers (AMEFs) 0 6117
Tax on profit reporied by the form 100 o 0
Difference of tx on profit to be paid 392 255 237 191

The tax on profit declared by the company for the year 2020 reported and owed by the
company 15 of 237 191 lei according to the annual statement 101,
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 31" December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in “RON", unless otherwise specified)

Turnover | _. | - ron -
"~ + Sold production ' 5 704 671 5 453 |70
* Provision of services 2 3 400 T12 s

“nn:s from the sIE: En 3? 3% 4 98T 3
% Romania 74 262 921 49 728
I * Internntionally 4 682 290 3424 505

3. Subsequent events
Mo events occurred after the balance sheet date that may influence the ability of users of
the financial statements to make evaluations and make correct decisions or adjust the figures
presented for the vear 2020,

4. Audit costs
The Company has concluded contracts for the statutory audit in 2020 with the Company
JPA Audit & Consultanta SEL and for internal audit with the company CIPL Expert Audit SRL.
The fees are set based on the contracts concluded and are presented as follows (the amounts
include VAT):

- [ -
_ _ 2019 2020
fees paid to auditors 29 (174 20 G572

5. Expenses on rents and leasing

On 20,05.2016 there was concluded a hinancial leasing contract no. 3010244/20.05.2016
for the financing of the acquisition of 5 (five) portable analysers totalling 41,950 euro, of which
an advance of 8390 euro was paid, the financing value was of 33,560 euro. Subsequently, the
number of portable analysers was increased with 2 (fwo) more picces for the financing of which
the financial leasing contract no. 30106876/06.07.2016 was concluded, having a total value of
16,780 euro, of which an advance of 3,356 euro was paid, the financed value being of 13,424
eure. Both contracts were paid in full in 2020, The interest expense registered in 2020 related to
leasing contracts was in the amount of 2,051.03 lei.

The expenses with the registered rents are amounts related to the land lease agreements
from local authorities on which the Reception Base of Pecenenga and the Reception Base of
Macin operate, and in addition to the preévious vears, in the autumn of 2020, Comcereal SA
Tulcea took over for agricultural exploitation & land ares of approximately 822 ha for which 1t
paid the rent for the 2020-2021 campaign, the values in 2020 compared to 2019 are:

Local of Macin o 87708
Leocal Council of Peceneago 1 YRl 3
Aeva Grano SEL Sublease comtrsct no. 2620/ 01, 102020 and 26327 /

01,0260 il e

6. Commitments
There are no commitments in the relationship with affiliated parties,
On 31™ December 2020, Comeereal SA has the following commitments:

1B
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended on 31" December 2020
fall amounts are expressed in "RON", unless etherwise specified)

- puarantees of BO type advanced by Comeereal 3A Tulcea in order lo execute and
fees for the payment obligations resulting from the com sale contract:

RTRL3BS479904 Cargill Agticailtura SRL. 2100078647/22.102000 | 2051 104 |

= real estite mortgage type guarantees committed under the short-term credit contract
of 30,000,000 lei concluded with Transilvania Bank:

land end constructions a1 Baia Silo A 405 410 ROM
land and construciions a1 Reception Base of Mihail Kogalniceanu 2337361 RON
Tand and constructions a1 Becoption Base of Mahmudia 2 120039 RO
land and constructions Comeeseal on lsaceel street. nao, 73 453 320 RIOM

7. Contingencies
The Company has not recorded any contingent assets or contingent liabilities.

8. The environment

As a result of the technological conditioning process (removal of foreign bodies, vegetable
and mineral powders by suction from the product mass) it results:
- non-valuable technological wastes, which are transported with their own means to the waste
dumps in the localities where the reception bases operate
- valuable technological waste that 15 redeemed by resale or restitution to agricultural
producers,

At the reception bases belonging to our company, no sources of soil and subsoil
pollution have been identified, there are no sources of radiation. the noise and vibration levels
are within the permiszible limits.

There is a contract for taking over waste and houschold waste for all reception bases in
the district with the sanitation company JIT Grup SRL and for the municipality of Tulcea with
the company Servicii Publice Tulcea.

The company has no litigation about breaches of environmental legislation.

In the course of the storage and preservation of the agricultural products there have
been no events that have any impact on the environment,

9. Risk management

By the nature of its activity, the company is primarily exposed to the risk of natural
phenomena manifestations. Other risks specific to the company’s activity are the ones
regarding the prices or the lguidity.

Taking into account the financial results of the company registered in the year 2020, as
well as the company's perspective, there are created the premises of attracting liquidities from
the crediting institutions, which would reduce the liguidity risk and would inceease the
company’s turnover and company’s performance.

From a fiscal point of view, Romanian legislation has undergone continuous changes
m recent yvears. Interpreting the text of the law and the practical mmplementation of fiscal

1%
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial vear ended on 31" December 2020
fall amounts ave expressed in “RON", unless otherwise specified)

procedures may vary and there is a risk that in some transactions the interpretation of fiscal
authoritics will be different from that of the company. Following the transactions with the
affiliated parties, the company has drafted the transfer pricing file but the fiscal authorities
may have different interpretations on the transactions and may impose additional tax
obligations as a result of the transfer pricing adjustment materalized in the increase of the
ineomes, the reduction of the deductible expenses. which can penerate an increase in the
taxable calculation base from the point of view of tax on profit and of the VAT,

10, The impact of the Coronavirus pandemic

The coronavirus pandemic is rewriting how activity is performed in all domains,
globally, but the agriculture is an essential area that needs to be protected because it provides
the much-needed food for everyone and can prevent a food crisis.

The uncertainty induced by the state of emergency and the state of alert, the reaction
of the consumers to the evolution of the coronavirus epidemic, the crisis of supplies of any
kind and of the free movement as well as the restrictions on social distancing have led 1o a
rapid and efficient review of the working procedures and emergency measures that were
imposed, limiting the negative impact that this event could have had on the economic results,

A series of additional measures were instituted regarding the disinfection of the
company’s premises, limiting travels, limiting the access of foreigners to the headquarters of
the county bases, using electronic means of distance communication, postponing the work
schedule to ensure social distance, etc, These measures did not have a sipnificant impact on
the company’s results and we do not anticipate a major future impact of the evolution of the
Covid — 19 pandemic on future economic results, without excluding it in full.

Sole Administrator, General Manager, Economic Manager
IOAN PAUNA NICULESCU EMILIAN MIHAI MOMNEA ALURORA
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COMCEREAL S.A.

73 lsacea Street,
Tulcea

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of COMCEREAL 54,

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion on the Individual Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the COMCEREAL 5.A. (Comcercal or the
“*Company "), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2020, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity
stutement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

These financial staterments include:
Shareholder’s Equity 31.086.454 Lei
Profit 205983 L

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2020 and its finaneial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in aceordance with the Order Now
1802/2014 of the Ministry of Public Finances for the approval of the accounting
regulations on the individual and consolidated annual financial statements, along with
subsequent changes.

Basis for Opinion

We condueted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA),
EL! Regulation no. 337 of the European Parliament and the European Council (hereafter
“the Regulation™) and the Law no. 16272017 (“the Law™), Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
within the meaning of the Ethics Code for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
issued by the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, according to ethical
requirements relevant to the audit of the financial statements in Romania and have
Fulfilled our other responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
Cpnion.

B-dnl Marwas Vocs 33, o) 3 JABEIT0D Tel: 021 327 57 341 38 = T .
Scior B CP 4 TH VAT No, RI4851631 | Fas 021327 51 38 Fraeisa 0F Freses
Thapoarern, RIOTMANLY CEOCARCAFR ANEY AE I afTeeddig. m W R

JFA Bemanis s & resdermmk of FPA Al & Comediangs 508 |



Other aspects

Uncertaintier related to the crisis effects of COVID-19 pandenic

We draw attention to the possible effects that can occur at the company level and in the
environment in which this activates its business as well as the measures which the
management of the company would, eventually, need to take due to the pandemic situation
caused by the COVID-19 virus. The current sitwation indicates that the effects of this crisis
can be prolonged indefinitely, therefore forecasting the whole impact it can have is noi
possible. In the disclosure notes to the financial staiements, at notc no 16 “Cher
information”, point 10}, aspects related to the COVID-19 simation arc disclosed in detail.
Crar audit opinion is not modified due w this aspect.

Other information — Adminisirators ™ Repori

The administrators are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the directors”
report in aceordance with the Order no. 180272014 of the Mimstry of Public Finances
on the approval of the accounting regulations of the individual and consolidated annual
financial statements , as such as this report is free from material misstatements and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of the directors” report that is free from material misstatement, whether doe to fraud or
Errot,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover these other information, and

unless is expressly stated in our report, we do not express any assurance conclusion
about them.

Regarding the audit of the financial statements for the financial yesr ended December
31, 2020, it is our responsibility to read that other information and to assess whether that
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or knowledge,
we obtain duning the audit, or if they appear to be material misstatement.

With respect to the Administrators’ Report, we have read it and we report on whether it
was prepared, in all material aspects, in accordance with OMFP no. 1802/2014 for the
approval of the accounting regulations on the individual and consolidated annual
financial statements.

On the sole basis of the activities which shall be performed during the audit of the
financial statements, in our opinion;

a) Nothing was identified by us that make us believe that the information presented
in the Administrators” Report. in material respects, is not in accordance with the
financial statements.

b) The Admmistrators’ Report mentioned above includes, in all material respecis,
the information requested by the OMFP no. 1802/2014 (accounting regulations
on the individual and consolidated annual financial statements),

In addition, based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its
environment, acquired during the audit of the financial statements for the vear ended



December 31, 2020, we are required to report whether we have identified significant
misstatements in the Administrators’ Report. We have nothing to report on this issue,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance jor the Financial
Statemeris

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Anancial
stafements in accordance with the Order no. 1802/2014 and for such internal control as
managemnent determines is necessary to enable the preparation of individual fnancial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the individual financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue a3 a going concem, disclosing, as
apphicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do o,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporing process

Auditor s Responsitilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinien. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an sudit conducted in accordance with [SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from frand
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise profiessional judgment and
muntain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud 15 higher than for one resulting from ervor, as fraud may
mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal
eontrol,
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#  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

#  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material unceriainty exists, we are required to draw atiention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinton. Cur conclusions are based on the aodit
evidence obtained up to the date of our anditor™s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

o Evaluste the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters.
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters commumnicated with those charged with governance, we delermine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matiers in
our guditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that & matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on other legal and regulatory provisions

We have been appointed as auditors by the Sharcholder’s Assembly dated April 11, 2019
for the vear ended December 31, 2019, December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2021,

We contirm that in conducting our audit, we have retained our independence with the audited
citity.



We confirm that we have not provided for the Company non-audit services prohibited
under Article 5 (1) of the EU Regulation no. 537/2014.

In the name of
JPA Anditsi Consultanta S.R.L.
Rem Auditor ASPAAS FA119

Florin Toma
Registered Auditor ASPAAS AF1747
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